
RIVER FOREST FIREFIGHTERS’ PENSION FUND 
400 Park Avenue ■ River Forest, Illinois 60305 

 
Stephen Fischer John Carter Lester Telkamp Tom Severson Rosey McAdams 

President Secretary Trustee Trustee     Trustee 
 

NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
RIVER FOREST FIREFIGHTERS’ PENSION 

FUND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

The River Forest Firefighters’ Pension Fund Board of Trustees will conduct a regular meeting on 
Thursday, July 27, 2023 at 2:30 p.m. in the Village Hall located at 400 Park Avenue, River 
Forest, Illinois 60305, for the purposes set forth in the following agenda: 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Public Comment 
4. Approval of Meeting Minutes 

a. April 27, 2023 Regular Meeting  
b. Semi-Annual Review of Closed Session Meeting Minutes 
c. Review/Approve – Destruction of Remote Meeting Recordings  

5. Communications and Reports 
a. Affidavits of Continued Eligibility  
b. Active Member File Maintenance  

6. Investment Report 
a. FPIF – Marquette Associates 
b. Statement of Results  
c. Review of Non-FPIF Account Holdings 

7. Accountant’s Report – Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 
a. Monthly Financial Report 
b. Presentation and Approval of Bills 
c. Additional Bills, if any 
d. Review/Update – Cash Management Policy  

8. Applications for Retirement/Disability Benefits 
9. Applications for Membership/Withdrawals from Fund 

a. Application for Membership – Timothy Kyles 
b. Deceased Surviving Spouse – Lorraine Riley  

10. Old Business 
a. Review/Approve – Updated Board Rules and Regulations 
b. Appointed Member Term Expiration – Rosey McAdams 

11. New Business 
a. Review Preliminary Actuarial Valuation  
b. Board Officer Elections – President and Secretary  
c. FOIA Officer and OMA Designee  
d. IDOI Annual Statement  

12. Trustee Training Updates 
a. Approval of Trustee Training Registration Fees and Reimbursable Expenses  

13. Attorney’s Report – Karlson Garza McQueary LLC 
a. Legal Updates 

14. Closed Session, if needed 
15. Adjournment  

1 of 67



                          
                  RIVER FOREST FIREFIGHTERS’ PENSION FUND 
 

                   400 Park Avenue    ■    River Forest, Illinois 60305 
 
                                                          Stephen Fischer       John Carter      Lester Telkamp   Rosemary McAdams   Thomas Severson 

                                                                    President              Secretary               Trustee                Trustee                   Trustee 

 
 

    MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
  RIVER FOREST FIREFIGHTERS’ PENSION FUND  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
APRIL 27, 2023 

 
A regular meeting of the River Forest Firefighters’ Pension Fund Board of Trustees was held on 
Thursday, April 27, 2023 at 2:30 p.m. in the River Forest Village Hall Located at 400 Park 
Avenue, River Forest, Illinois 60305, pursuant to notice. 
 
CALL TO ORDER: Trustee McAdams called the meeting to order at 2:43 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
PRESENT:  Trustees Stephen Fischer (arrived at 2:44 p.m.), Rosemary McAdams, 

Lester Telkamp, John Carter (arrived at 2:45 p.m.) and Tom Severson  
ABSENT:  None 
ALSO PRESENT: Attorney Mark McQueary, Karlson Garza McQueary LLC; Alex Michael, 

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP (L&A) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment. 
 
APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: January 26, 2023 Regular Meeting: The Board 
reviewed the January 26, 2023 regular meeting minutes. A motion was made by Trustee 
McAdams and seconded by Trustee Severson to approve the January 26, 2023 regular meeting 
minutes as written. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.  
 
Trustee Fischer arrived at 2:44 p.m. 
 
Trustee Carter arrived at 2:45 p.m. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS: Statements of Economic Interest: The Board was 
reminded that the Statements of Economic Interest are due by May 1, 2023.  
 
Affidavits of Continued Eligibility: The Board noted that L&A will mail Affidavits of Continued 
Eligibility to all pensioners in second quarter. A status update will be provided at the next regular 
meeting. 
 
INVESTMENT REPORT: FPIF – Marquette Associates: The Board reviewed the FPIF 
Monthly Summary prepared by Marquette Associates for the period ending February 28, 2023. 
As of February 28, 2023 the one-month total net return is (2.6%) and the year-to-date total net 
return is 3% for an ending market value of $7,474,009,308. The current asset allocation is as 
follows: Total Equity at 64.6%, Fixed Income at 28.9%, Real Estate at 4.9% and Cash at 1.5%.  
 

2 of 67



River Forest Firefighters’ Pension Fund 
Meeting Minutes – April 27, 2023 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Statement of Results: The Board reviewed the Northern Trust Statement of Results for the period 
ending February 28, 2023. The beginning value was $16,643,733.01 and the ending value was 
$16,027,966.37. The net return on total assets was (2.60%).  
 
Review of Non-FPIF Account Holdings: Trustee McAdams informed the Board that currently 
there is approximately $20,000 in the Illinois Funds Account.  
 
ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT – LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP: Monthly Financial Report 
and Presentation and Approval of Bills: The Board reviewed the Monthly Financial Report for 
the ten-month period ending February 28, 2023 prepared by L&A. As of February 28, 2023, the 
net position held in trust for pension benefits is $16,284,528.29 for a change in position of 
($1,270,751.04). The Board also reviewed the Cash Analysis Report, Revenue Report, Expense 
Report, Member Contribution Report, Payroll Journal and the Vendor Check Report for the 
period December 1, 2022 through February 28, 2023 for total disbursements of $91,282.08. A 
motion was made by Trustee Carter and seconded by Trustee Fischer to accept the Monthly 
Financial Report as presented and approve the disbursements shown on the Vendor Check 
Report in the amount of $91,282.08. Motion carried by roll call vote. 
AYES:       Trustees McAdams, Severson, Telkamp, Carter and Fischer  
NAYS:       None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
Additional Bills, if any: There were no additional bills presented for approval.  
 
Review/Update – Cash Management Policy: The Board discussed the current Cash Management 
Policy and determined that no changes are required at this time. 
 
APPLICATIONS FOR RETIREMENT/DISABILITY BENEFITS: There were no 
applications for retirement or disability benefits.  
 
APPLICATIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP/WITHDRAWALS FROM FUND: There were no 
applications for membership or withdrawals from the Fund.  
 
OLD BUSINESS: There was no old business to discuss.   
 
NEW BUSINESS: Discussion/Possible Action – Lauterbach & Amen, LLP Engagement Letter: 
The Board reviewed the L&A three-year engagement letter. A motion was made by Trustee 
Carter and seconded by Trustee McAdams to engage the L&A engagement letter in the annual 
amounts as follows; $26,535 for the year ended April 30, 2024; $27,290 for the year ended April 
30, 2025; and $28,105 for the year ended April 30, 2026. Motion carried by roll call vote.  
AYES:       Trustees McAdams, Severson, Telkamp, Carter and Fischer  
NAYS:       None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
The Board reviewed the L&A three-year engagement letter for actuarial services. A motion was 
made by Trustee Carter and seconded by Trustee McAdams to engage L&A in the annual 
amounts as follows: $5,200 for the year ended April 30, 2023; $5,400 for the year ended April 
30, 2024; and $5,620 for the year ended April 30, 2025 at a cost of 25% of the total annual fees 
as stated. Motion carried by roll call vote.   

3 of 67



River Forest Firefighters’ Pension Fund 
Meeting Minutes – April 27, 2023 
Page 3 of 4 
 
AYES:       Trustees McAdams, Severson, Telkamp, Carter and Fischer  
NAYS:       None 
ABSENT:  None 
 
Trustees Fischer and Carter left the meeting at 2:58 p.m. 
 
Discussion/Possible Action – Attorney Fee Increase: Attorney McQueary informed the Board 
that effective July 1, 2023 the hourly and quarterly retainer fee will be increasing. A motion was 
made by Trustee Severson and seconded by Trustee McAdams to approve the fee increase as 
discussed. Motion carried by roll call vote. 
AYES:       Trustees McAdams, Severson and Telkamp  
NAYS:       None 
ABSENT:  Trustee Carter and Fischer 
 
Review/Approve – Updated Board Rules and Regulations: The Board noted that the draft Board 
Rules and Regulations were received. Further discussion will be held at the next regular meeting.  
 
Certify Board Election Results – Active Member Position: L&A conducted an election for one of 
the active member positions on the River Forest Firefighters’ Pension Fund Board of Trustees. 
John Carter ran unopposed and was reelected for a three-year term expiring April 30, 2026. A 
motion was made by Trustee McAdams and seconded by Trustee Telkamp to certify the active 
member election results. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.  
 
Appointed Member Term Expiration – Rosey McAdams: The Board noted that Trustee McAdams 
appointment expires April 2023 and reappointment has been requested. Further discussion will 
be held at the next regular meeting.  
 
Discussion/Possible Action – Authorized Agents and Account Representatives for FPIF: The 
Board discussed the current authorized agents and account representatives and noted no changes 
are needed at this time. 
 
TRUSTEE TRAINING UPDATES: The Board reviewed the Trustee Training Summary and 
discussed upcoming training opportunities. Trustees were reminded to submit any certificates of 
completion to L&A for recordkeeping.  
 
Approval of Trustee Training Registration Fees and Reimbursable Expenses: There were no 
trustee training registration fees or reimbursable expenses presented for approval. 
 
ATTORNEY’S REPORT – KARLSON GARZA MCQUEARY LLC: Legal Updates: The 
Board reviewed the Response Time quarterly newsletter. Attorney McQueary discussed recent 
court cases and decisions, as well as general pension matters with the Board.  
 
CLOSED SESSION, IF NEEDED: There was no need for closed session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: A motion was made by Trustee Severson and seconded by Trustee 
McAdams to adjourn the meeting at 3:20 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.  
 
 

4 of 67



River Forest Firefighters’ Pension Fund 
Meeting Minutes – April 27, 2023 
Page 4 of 4 
 
The next regular meeting is scheduled for July 27, 2023 at 2:30 p.m.  
 
_____________________________________________   
Board President or Secretary   
 
Minutes approved by the Board of Trustees on_______________________. 
 

Minutes prepared by Alex Michael, Pension Services Administrator, Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 

5 of 67



River Forest Fire 
Closed Session Meeting Minute Log 

                                                                                             
Date of Closed 

Meeting 

 
Subject of Closed 

Meeting 

 
Date of Board 
Approval of 

Written Minutes 

 
Date the 

Recording is 
Eligible for 
Destruction 

 
Date of Board 
Approval of 
Recording 

Destruction 

 
Most Current 

Disposition of Written 
Minutes 

10/15/2015 Investment 
Consultants 

01/24/19 04/15/2017  Published on July 25, 
2019 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

6 of 67



 
 
 

Compilation of Audio-Video Recordings of Remote Session Meetings 
Conducted under State-Mandated COVID-Related Protocols (5 ILCS 120/7(e)) 

 
River Forest Firefighters’ Pension Fund 

April 23, 2020 – April 28 2022 
 

 
Meeting Date 

 
Date Board Approved Written 

Minutes from Meeting 

 
Date Audio Recording is 
Eligible for Destruction  

(18 months) 
 

 
Date Board Approved Audio 

Recording Destruction 

April 23, 2020 July 23, 2020 October 23, 2021  
July 23, 2020 October 22, 2020 January 23, 2022  
January 28, 2021 April 22, 2021 July 28, 2022  
April 28, 2022 July 28, 2022 October 28, 2023  
    
    

 
 
 
  

 

7 of 67



�����������	
���
�
	����
���������
���
�����������
��������	���������� ��!"#$%&'&()#*+,-./$011203)(4$
8 of 67



����������	

��
���
������ �

��������������������� �!��������"���#�����$�% &��$'��(�%�!�����#'�)��*+����������,

� -��'��.��$��/-��'���$�%�0�#1����� 23456�������!���!���)7�8��)�#'�9 23456-��'���$�%�0�#1�������:)�4�;�#<����$�%� 23456�������!���!���)7�8��)�#'�9 23456=4>4�?@$��7�0�#1����� A4B6�����.$������BAAA A4C6+��2=4>4�?@$��7�0�#1����� 2B4C6�����;>0��&0D���:�=>&��;� 2B4E6-��'����:�%���)�#��0�#1����� 234A6�����8���#<����=>�=��"���'��-. 234A6-��'��.�'��?��'���0�#1����� 23456�����.�'��?��'���0$���#�8��)�#'�9 234B6FFFFF

G������H�II��J�K�������L
9 of 67



� ���������	
���
������	��
�

	 ������	���	���	���������	�� �� ! "#��	$ �%� &	'(	)'"�('�*' )'�*+,	&-.���/	0���	1�23����� 45�6�7��8��98� �����: �����:.���/	0���	1�23�����	�;
/�	��2<��	0���� 45�6�7��8��98� �����: �����:.���/	������	1�23����� 4=�7=��57��6=� 68��: 68��:>�?�	������	1�23����� 4��5�5���7�5�7 �8�9: �6��:@A%BC�*D�	@%�����	EFF G "H�I� J	�'"� KLMNOLMPOQMOOP EPRP& EPRF&@A%BC�*D�	@%�����	!*S+ J !*SI� J	�'"� KQOOMOOPMPLE TRP& NRF&@A%BC�*D�	UV)	QFF UB ��I� J	�'"� KLOLMFWXMXPE LRN& ERF&Y��Z>�?�	������	1�23����� 4����8�56��7�� �7��: �7��:������������/	[�\�/�3��	������	1�23����� 4��=58��76�5�� �7�=: �7��:UU]�	̂'"�S	�_	̀U a'DÌRUR	G "H�I� J	�'"� KLMEPXMTOFMEPW LQRP& LQRF&UU]�	̂'"�S	�_	̀U	UB �� a'DÌRUR	UB ��I� J	�'"� KELXMPPQMOXX ERN& WRF&�2������	���b���	������	1�23����� 45=���65���= 7�5: ����:UU]�	!U�c	d! dB�"H*DH	! "#��� KPNFMTOOMNOP XRT& TRF&UU]�	d!	UB �� d!	UB ��I� J KLONMPEEMEPN ERF& ERF&.���/	0�;��	��
�2�	1�23����� 4����6��7=��=� �7��: ����:e���	?������\�	1�23����� 4��77�������7� �6��: �5��:?f���Z.��2	.�������	1�23����� 4����5�9�955 ��7: ���:UU]�	UA'"�	g"� �%", UA'"�Ig�"B	]'h�R	i*_�S	cD+'B� KEEFMXFTMTXX ERN& WRF&1���	0�;��	��
�2�	1�23����� 4��55��=�=���� ����: �=��:] "+* 	j B*��'D	V	���'+* ��� �'"�	i*_�S	cD+'B� KTTFMXENMWTQ LLRQ& LERF&k"'lD	k"'�A�"�	j ""*B D	V	�' �'"�	)�%�	i*_�S	cD+'B� KTTNMQNOMTEX LLRX& LERF&1�����	0�;��	��
�2�	1�23����� 4��8��6���8� ���: ���:�2������	���b���	[�<�	1�23����� 4��8��6���8� ���: ���:UU]�	d!	]�'C �	m*h�"�*(*�S d!	i*_�S	cD+'B� KEEPMEQLMFPF WRF& WRF&.���/	e��/	������	1�23����� 4�86���7��5� =�5: 8��:1���	e��/	������	1�23����� 4�86���7��5� =�5: 8��:n�</�
	e��/	������	1�23����� 4�����=���95 ��6: ���:UU]�	igUd	a�@dcg R̀UR	@dcg KLEEMFOLMETX LRQ& ERF&n��\���	e��/	������	1�23����� 4��=��95�998 ���: ���:)"*D+*J �	̀U)�	i%DS �'"�	@� �	d�� �� KEWOMFTXMTTP WRL& WRF&1��f	1�23����� 47��995�7=� ���: ���:.���������	1�23����� 4=9�786 ���: ���:��2<��	0����	1�23����� ZZ ZZ ���:ooooo

g'� �	i%DS	�'BJ'�*�� �����	���'+ �*'D! "#��	$ �%�p	KXMQFNRW	!*��*'D	 DS	LFFRF&	'(	i%DS

10 of 67



����������	

��
���
������ �

� ���
������������������� ���� �� ���! ���!" #��!" �$��!" %&'()*+�& %&'()*+�& ,*(-.���/�0����1�23�

�� 4��� ��5 6�5 4��7 44 44 44 46�8 9��4��:;<:;�<=>?@A�BCD@EFGHI JKLM KLN OLP JPLO QLO OLR QLS JSLR T@UJMK.���/�0����1�23�

����V�/����2W���0���
 4��� ��5 6�5 4��8 44 44 44 4X�5 9��4��:;<:;�<=>?@A�BCD@EFGHI JKLM KLN OLP JPLO QLO OLR QLS JQLS T@UJMK.���/����
���1�23�

�� 4��6 ��6 Y�8 ��� 44 44 44 48�� 9��4��Z[\:�]\̂ :�:Z:�_CU�̀[a JKLM MLO bLP PLR KPLP QLR bLb JbLO T@UJMKc�d�����
���1�23�

�� ��� 6�� 7�Y ��8 44 44 44 4Y�� 9��4��efggC>>�RPPP PLS SLM hLb MLP KMLM KPLK KKLO JQLO T@UJMKijklmn+&(�ik""(nn�o$$ �pq rp# �ops spr tt tt tt tsps u'*to�efggC>>�v=w�MPP KLQ hLO KMLS SLN KRLM KMLP KMLb JSLR T@UJMKijklmn+&(�ik""(nn��+x',) topr tspr $pq tspq tt tt tt t�$pr u'*to�efggC>>�Z?y\Gw JMLh JSLh PLQ JSLO KPLM QLN NLR JKPLb T@UJMKijklmn+&(�z{|�q$$ t�p} t~ps top$ t}po tt tt tt t�$p# u'*to�[�<�QPP�[FG>>\Gw JKLh JNLS JMLP JbLR KRLQ RLh hLN JKPLO T@UJMK���4c�d�����
���1�23�

�� 4��6 ��X 6�Y 4��7 44 44 44 47�6 9��4��Z[\:�]\̂ :�C��̀[]�:Z: JRLO PLM SLQ JKLN bLR MLK SLP JhLQ T@UJMK��������
���/�����/�3������
���1�23�

�� 46�� ��� X�5 ��� 44 44 44 4Y�6 9��4��Z[\:�̂=H>y�C��̀[]�:Z:�_e�̀[a JSLR PLK OLb PLO hLS RLP SLQ JQLh T@UJMKzz�����!nx�(���z tsp� $pr qp# �p~ tt tt tt t#p� u'*to�Z[\:�̂=H>y�C��̀[] JSLS PLO QLM KLO hLh RLS SLO JOLQ T@UJMKzz�����!nx�(���z�zl,nn tsp$ topo opq tsp} tt tt tt t�op} u'*to�Z[\:�̂=H>y�C��̀[]�[FG>>�\Gw JSLM JMLO MLS JOLM QLP PLN OLM JKRLK T@UJMK�2���
���������
����
���1�23�

�� 4��X ��8 ��� 48�6 44 44 44 4���Y 9��4��Z[\:��FCH�?D��ZGHICUg�:Z: JKLR PLO KLb JbLh SLh JPLR MLK JKRLM T@UJMKzz����z�%��� top� $po �p$ trp# tt tt tt t��p~ u'*to�Z[\:��FCH�?D��ZGHICUg JKLb PLM KLK JhLO RLO JPLb KLN JKRLN T@UJMKzz������zl,nn $p~ op} #p~ t�p� tt tt tt t}p~ u'*to�Z[\:��FCH�?D��ZGHICUg�[FG>>�\Gw KLK MLb OLb JRLP KOLR MLQ RLM JhLP T@UJMK.���/�0
V�������2��1�23�

�� 4��� ��Y ��� 4��� 44 44 44 4Y�� 9��4��B>==F�CH��̀[�̀D?�CHgG>�ve JKLP KLN MLO JKLN JRLK KLP KLQ JbLP T@UJMK�����d��

�
���1�23�

�� 4��� ��8 ��� 4��� 44 44 44 4X�7 9��4��B>==F�CH��̀[�]��HC�GUC�ve JKLK MLP MLO JMLK JRLQ PLh KLS JbLP T@UJMKd����4.��2�.���
����1�23�

�� 4��6 44 44 44 44 44 44 4��� ���4��B>==F�CH��̀[�vHCGgfHA�KJR��H�ve JPLS KLO KLO PLP JPLN KLP PLh JPLK ZGHJMRzz���zj�!*��!(,"k!� t$ps tt tt tt tt tt tt t$p� �,!to�B>==F�CH��̀[�vHCGgfHA�KJR��H�ve JPLS KLO KLO PLP JPLN KLP PLh JPLK ZGHJMR

%&�("*l(&*��,&,�(! �&&k,n+�(x�|(!��!l,&'(���(*�����(("��,!�(*��,nk(���} q$~p���+nn+�&�,&x��$$p$¡�����k&x

11 of 67



� ���������	
���
������	��
�

	 ������	���	���	�����	�� �	�� � ! �	�" �	�"# $	�"# �%	�"# &'()*+,�' &'()*+,�'!-+)./���	0�1��	��
�2�	/�23����� 4��� ��5 ��� 4��� 44 44 44 45�5 6
�4��7899:;<=>	?@	A>>=<>BC<	DE FGHG IHJ IHK FIHG FLHM JHN GHO FPHJ QRCFIGS-"(,-	T-U,V+�'	W	X##�(,-+)# Y�Z[ YY YY YY YY YY YY Y%Z\ �-"Y[�7899:;<=>	?@	A>>=<>BC<	DE FGHG IHJ IHK FIHG FLHM JHN GHO FJHK ]B=FIL"̂�_'	̂"�+̀)"#	T-"",U-'	W	a� Y�Z� YY YY YY YY YY YY Y%Zb �-"Y[�7899:;<=>	?@	A>>=<>BC<	DE FGHG IHJ IHK FIHG FLHM JHN GHO FJHK ]B=FIL/�����	0�1��	��
�2�	/�23����� 4��5 ��c ��5 4��d 44 44 44 4���e 6
�4��fg	]9=>Bh	i]7j	k89;B8	lmn<=ompm<q FJHM JHr GHN FGHK FIHP FJHG IHG FGJHr QRCFIG�2������	���s���	t�u�	/�23����� 4��5 ��c ��5 4��d 44 44 44 4���e 6
�4��fg	]9=>Bh	i]7j	k89;B8	lmn<=ompm<q FJHM JHr GHN FGHK FIHP FJHG IHG FGJHr QRCFIGvvSX	w�	SV�x-V	!,y)"#,z,){ Y%Z| %Z} �Z| Y�Z\ YY YY YY Y�%Z$ ~(+Y[�fg	]9=>Bh	i]7j	k89;B8	lmn<=ompm<q FJHM JHr GHN FGHK FIHP FJHG IHG FGJHr QRCFIG�����	����	������	/�23����� 4��� 4��� 4��� 4c�� 44 44 44 4��e 6
�4��E<B8	ioCBC<	��oC9:	7<hR�:B=� FGHL FOHJ FGHr FMHO NHP MHM NHJ FJHL QRCFIG/���	����	������	/�23����� 4��� 4��� 4��� 4c�� 44 44 44 4��e 6
�4��E<B8	ioCBC<	��oC9:	7<hR�:B=� FGHL FOHJ FGHr FMHO NHP MHM NHJ FJHL QRCFIG��u��
	����	������	/�23����� 4��� 4��c ��� 4���� 44 44 44 4���� 6
�4���D@i	�AEijD	i��mC�	EijD FLHI FOHr JHI FGIHG NHI OHO KHP FGGHN QRCFIGvvSX	� vw	�X�w& Y�Z[ YbZ} %Z[ Y�[Z% YY YY YY Y��Z� ~(+Y[��D@i	�AEijD	i��mC�	EijD FLHI FOHr JHI FGIHG NHI OHO KHP FGGHN QRCFIG�������	����	������	/�23����� 4��� 4��� 4��� 4��� 44 44 44 5�5 6
�4����jFQl�i	i��B8	�<m>�C<q JHJ FLHK FLHK FLHP NHI PHG NHN MHP QRCFIG�",'(,*-V	�v�X	��'{ Y%Z[ Y[Z[ Y�Z� Y�Z� YY YY YY |Z| ~(+Y[���jFQl�i	i��B8	�<m>�C<q JHJ FLHK FLHK FLHP NHI PHG NHN MHP QRCFIG

&'y)#+U)'+	�-'-�)" X''�-V,�){	�)"z�"U-'()	��)+	�z	�))#��-"�)+	�-V�)�	�\�|%}Z�	�,VV,�'	-'{	�%%Z%�	�z	��'{

12 of 67



����������	

��
���
������ �

��������������������� �!���������"���#�����$�% ����&'��%$��

13 of 67



� ���������	
���
������	��
�

��������	������������ 	!������	��"���#���	�$�% &��'���$���(��
)*��+	,�����-./��0�	�$�%	1�#2�����34546768 !������ 69:	;$�����	/�2	677	4	<:	;$�����	=�%102	4	6:	>?!	@77	>#0��102	4	5@:	=>1�	A���%	�B	C>D	4	8:	=>1�	A���%	�B	C>D>#0��	102	4	E:	=>1�	F#������	=0�G���	4	6:	=>1�	F#������	=0�G���	>#0��	102	4	8:	H���#I���	C>	/��0�$�J	5K8	L�	/;4	63:	H���#I���	C>	D�����0��	/;	4	8:	M!	=���0�	F=H�	N��I0�	&�"�������%	4	6:	�/>F	OD;F�/	FP$��J	;F�/	4	8:	O��KQ&1F	FP$0�	A������%574546765 848546768 69:	;$�����	/�2	677	4	<:	;$�����	=�%102	4	6:	>?!	@77	>#0��102	4	5@:	=>1�	A���%	�B	C>D	4	8:	=>1�	A���%	�B	C>D>#0��	102	4	E:	=>1�	F#������	=0�G���	4	6:	=>1�	F#������	=0�G���	>#0��	102	4	8:	H���#I���	5K8	L�0�	C>	/�!>	4	<:H���#I���	C>	1��%��	���	/;	4	@:	H���#I���	C>	/��0�$�J	���	/;	4	8:	H���#I���	C>	/��0�$�J	R���	/;	4	@:	H���#I���C>	>�'$����S�%	=H>	DH>	1=H>	/;	4	8:	M!	=���0�	F=H�	N��I0�	&�"�������%	4	6:	�/>F	OD;F�/	FP$��J	;F�/	4	8:	O��KQ&1F	FP$0�	A������% ./��0�	;�0�	F��0��	1�#2�����5748546765 !������ @7:	O��KQ&1F	FP$0�	A������%	4	37:	�/>F	OD;F�/	FP$��J	;F�/TTTTT

.O��KQ&1F	FP$0�	A������% U$0�����J	"0�$�%	��%�BV	W0�$�	��	���	P$0�����J	���$��	��	��'����S�%	��	���	�0��	#����	��	�0'�	P$0����V	.��'�2����	!�����#0�'�	 /��0�	�$�%	1�#2�����X	!��"0��	;�0�	F��0��	1�#2�����X	0�%	���	!���'�20�	C>!D	�$�%	��'�2����	2�����#0�'�	0��	I0��%	��0�	Q'��I��	5X	6765	��0��V	D��	�����	0''�$��	0�%	'�#2�����	��'�2����	2�����#0�'�	��	I0��%	��	0�	Q'��I��	85X	6765	��0��V	Y��Z��*��
�	[��
\������

14 of 67



��� ��������	
�� ��
����������������������������
������������� 
� �
�!������!���"����#�
�����$%&'()*+$�()$�,-�./$�&'*$0.�12�./*23�452.-�612�7/*&/�*.�75)�42$452$38�9/$�*0612:5.*10�/$2$*0�75)�1,.5*0$3�621:�+52*1()�)1(2&$);�*0&'(3*0<�,(.�01.�'*:*.$3�.1�./*23�452.-�*0+$).:$0.�:505<$2);�./$�&'*$0.=)�&().13*50>)?�5&&1(0.*0<�).5.$:$0.);�&1::$2&*5''-�5+5*'5,'$�35.5,5)$);�503�1./$2�$&101:*&�503�6*050&*5'�:52@$.�35.5�)1(2&$)8�9/$�)1(2&$)�16�*0612:5.*10�()$3�*0�./*)�31&(:$0.�52$�,$'*$+$3�.1�,$�2$'*5,'$8�A52B($..$�/5)�01.�*03$4$03$0.'-�+$2*6*$3�5''�16�./$�*0612:5.*10�*0�./*)�31&(:$0.�503�*.)�5&&(25&-�&5001.�,$�<(5250.$$38�A52B($..$�5&&$4.)�01�'*5,*'*.-�612�50-�3*2$&.�12�&10)$B($0.*5'�'1))$)�52*)*0<�621:�*.)�()$8�9/$�*0612:5.*10�421+*3$3�/$2$*0�*)�5)�16�./$�35.$�544$52*0<�*0�./*)�:5.$2*5'�10'-�503�*)�)(,C$&.�.1�&/50<$�7*./1(.�42*12�01.*&$8�9/();�5''�)(&/�*0612:5.*10�*)�)(,C$&.�.1�*03$4$03$0.�+$2*6*&5.*10�503�7$�(2<$�&'*$0.)�.1�&1:452$�./$�*0612:5.*10�)$.�612./�*0�./*)�).5.$:$0.�7*./�./$�).5.$:$0.)�-1(�2$&$*+$�3*2$&.'-�621:�./$�&().13*50�*0�123$2�.1�$0)(2$�5&&(25&-�16�5''�5&&1(0.�*0612:5.*108�D5).�4$2612:50&$�31$)�01.�<(5250.$$�6(.(2$�2$)('.)�503�*0+$).*0<�*0+1'+$)�2*)@�16�'1))8�E1�<254/;�&/52.;�12�612:('5�&50;�*0�503�16�*.)$'6;�,$�()$3�.1�3$.$2:*0$�7/*&/�)$&(2*.*$)�12�*0+$).:$0.)�.1�,(-�12�)$''8��F127523G'11@*0<�).5.$:$0.);�*0&'(3*0<�7*./1(.�'*:*.5.*10�50-�).5.$:$0.�12�42$3*&.*10�5,1(.�5�6(.(2$�$+$0.�&10.5*0$3�*0�./*)�42$)$0.5.*10;�52$�,5)$3�10�5�+52*$.-�16�$).*:5.$)�503�5))(:4.*10)�,-�A52B($..$;�*0&'(3*0<;�,(.�01.�'*:*.$3�.1;�$).*:5.$)�16�6(.(2$�14$25.*0<�2$)('.);�./$�+5'($�16�5))$.)�503�:52@$.�&103*.*10)8�9/$)$�$).*:5.$)�503�5))(:4.*10);�*0&'(3*0<�./$�2*)@�5))$)):$0.)�503�421C$&.*10)�2$6$2$0&$3;�52$�*0/$2$0.'-�(0&$2.5*0�503�52$�)(,C$&.�.1�0(:$21()�,()*0$));�*03().2-;�:52@$.;�2$<('5.12-;�<$1G41'*.*&5';�&1:4$.*.*+$;�503�6*050&*5'�2*)@)�./5.�52$�1(.)*3$�16�A52B($..$=)�&10.21'8�9/$2$�&50�,$�01�5))(250&$�./5.�./$�5))(:4.*10)�:53$�*0�&100$&.*10�7*./�50-�6127523G'11@*0<�).5.$:$0.�7*''�421+$�5&&(25.$;�503�5&.(5'�2$)('.)�:5-�3*66$2�:5.$2*5''-8��9/$�*0&'()*10�16�50-�6127523G'11@*0<�).5.$:$0.�/$2$*0�)/1('3�01.�,$�2$<523$3�5)�50�*03*&5.*10�./5.�A52B($..$�&10)*3$2)�6127523G'11@*0<�).5.$:$0.)�.1�,$�5�2$'*5,'$�42$3*&.*10�16�6(.(2$�$+$0.)8�9/$�+*$7)�&10.5*0$3�/$2$*0�52$�./1)$�16�A52B($..$�503�)/1('3�01.�,$�.5@$0�5)�6*050&*5'�53+*&$�12�5�2$&1::$035.*10�.1�,(-�12�)$''�50-�)$&(2*.-8�H0-�612$&5).);�6*<(2$);�14*0*10)�12�*0+$).:$0.�.$&/0*B($)�503�).25.$<*$)�3$)&2*,$3�52$�*0.$03$3�612�*0612:5.*105'�4(241)$)�10'-8�9/$-�52$�,5)$3�10�&$2.5*0�5))(:4.*10)�503�&(22$0.�:52@$.�&103*.*10);�503�5'./1(</�5&&(25.$�5.�./$�.*:$�16�72*.*0<;�52$�)(,C$&.�.1�&/50<$�7*./1(.�42*12�01.*&$8�I4*0*10);�$).*:5.$);�421C$&.*10);�503�&1::$0.)�10�6*050&*5'�:52@$.�.2$03)�&10).*.(.$�1(2�C(3<:$0.�503�52$�)(,C$&.�.1�&/50<$�7*./1(.�01.*&$8�A52B($..$�$%42$))'-�3*)&'5*:)�5''�'*5,*'*.-�*0�2$)4$&.�.1�5&.*10)�.5@$0�,5)$3�10�50-�12�5''�16�./$�*0612:5.*10�*0&'(3$3�12�2$6$2$0&$3�*0�./*)�31&(:$0.8�9/$�*0612:5.*10�*)�,$*0<�421+*3$3�,5)$3�10�./$�(03$2).503*0<�./5.�$5&/�2$&*4*$0.�/5)�)(66*&*$0.�@017'$3<$�503�$%4$2*$0&$�.1�$+5'(5.$�./$�:$2*.)�503�2*)@)�16�*0+$).*0<8�A52B($..$�*)�50�*03$4$03$0.�*0+$).:$0.�53+*)$2�2$<*).$2$3�(03$2�./$�J0+$).:$0.�H3+*)$2)�H&.�16�KLMN;�5)�5:$03$38�O$<*).25.*10�31$)�01.�*:4'-�5�&$2.5*0�'$+$'�16�)@*''�12�.25*0*0<8�A12$�*0612:5.*10�5,1(.�A52B($..$�*0&'(3*0<�1(2�*0+$).:$0.�).25.$<*$);�6$$)�503�1,C$&.*+$)�&50�,$�61(03�*0�1(2�HPQ�D52.�R;�7/*&/�*)�5+5*'5,'$�(410�2$B($).8�
15 of 67



River Forest Firefighters Pension Fund

Disclaimer / Important Information:
The Plan Total reflects the total of underlying plan balances, and may not be equal to the sum of displayed columns.

Although this report has been prepared using information believed to be reliable, it may contain information provided by third parties or
derived from third party information, and/or information that may have been obtained from, categorized or otherwise reported based upon
client direction. The Northern Trust Company does not guarantee the accuracy, timeliness or completeness of any such information. The
information included in this report is intended to assist clients with their financial reporting needs, but you must consult with your
accountants, auditors and/or legal counsel to ensure your accounting and financial reporting complies with applicable laws, regulations and
accounting guidance. The Northern Trust Company and its affiliates shall have no responsibility for the consequences of investment decisions
made in reliance on information contained in this report.

NTAC:3NS-20

Statement of Results

Illinois Firefighters Pension Investment Fund
Currency: USD ($) May 2023 2023 YTD

Beginning NAVs:
Beginning NAV 17,114,722.48 15,106,881.49

Contributions 439.97 1,801,588.92
Withdrawals 185,000.00 925,000.00

Net Time Weighted Activity -118,971.64
Allocation Balance 16,995,750.84
Allocation Percent 0.22%

Income & Expenses:
Unrealized Gain/Loss -238,265.96 1,031,956.06
Realized Gain/Loss -856.33 -388,415.39
Dividend Income 11,538.35 45,162.38
Interest Income 17,453.51 52,403.11
Other Income - 0.39
Total Income -210,130.43 741,106.55

Administrator Expenses (FPIF) - 1,339.52
Other Fee & Expenses (FPIF) 222.10 3,050.87
Other Expenses 59.84 115.90
Management Fee 294.27 614.86
Performance Fee - -
Total Fee & Expenses 576.21 5,121.15

Net Income -210,706.64 735,985.40

Ending NAVs:
Ending NAV 16,719,455.81 16,719,455.81

Rate of Returns:
Return on Invested Capital -1.24% 4.89%

Return on Total Assets -1.24% 4.88%
Ownership 0.22%

16 of 67



River Forest Firefighters Pension Fund
Portfolio Activity Report
From 5/1/2023 To 5/31/2023

(Report as of June 22, 2023)

1

Date Name Activity Amount Cash Amount Note

Client Activities:

5/12/2023     River Forest Redeem 185,000.00 (185,000.00)
**PPF PAYMENT TRANSFER FROM MEMBER FUND 
ACCOUNT ON NT PLATFORM TO EXTERNAL 
MEMBER FUND ACCT

Total Client Activities: 185,000.00 (185,000.00)

Investment Activities:

5/5/2023     Illinois Firefighters Pension Investment Fund Subscription 439.97 (439.97)
**INTEREST EARNED ON MEMBER FUND 
CONTRIBUTIONS PLAN #330

5/12/2023     Illinois Firefighters Pension Investment Fund Redeem 185,000.00 185,000.00
**PPF TRANSFER TRANSFER FROM FPIF MAIN 
CASH ACCT TO MEMBER FUND CASH ACCOUNT ON 
NT PLATFORM

Total Investment Activities: 185,439.97 184,560.03

Total Portfolio Activities: 370,439.97 (439.97)

17 of 67



Year-End Close Adjustments

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2023

Included as of the Month Ended May 31, 2023

Prepared By

668 N. RIVER ROAD • NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60563

PHONE 630.393.1483 • FAX 630.393.2516

www.lauterbachamen.com

18 of 67



MEMO

TO:           Members of the Pension Board of Trustees

FROM:     Sherry Lauterbach

RE:           Year End Close Adjustments

___________________________________________________________________________________

This memo is intended to inform you of the agreed upon year end close adjustments that were recorded
in the current month's financial statements. These are non-cash adjustments and are not related to the
portfolio's market value.

More precisely, this month adjusting entries from the previous fiscal year end were posted. These
adjustments would include accrued interest, due/unpaid expenses, prepaids and any other adjustments
necessary to complete the audit workpapers.  These closing adjustments occur on an annual basis.

The only real affect of these adjustments is to fund balance. A prior year adjustment would update the
fund balance to reflect the most accurate position as of the previous year end.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact A.J. Weber or Susan Hill at 630.393.1483.

Cordially,

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP
Lauterbach & Amen, LLP

19 of 67



Reference Account Description Debit Credit

Journal:  Y/E Adjustments
YEadj 20-110-00 YE 1 - To reverse FYE2022-04 Accruals 3,862.50 0.00

YEadj 52-150-01 YE 1 - To reverse FYE2022-04 Accruals 1,899.50 0.00

YEadj 52-290-26 YE 1 - To reverse FYE2022-04 Accruals 530.00 0.00

YEadj 18-100-00 YE 1 - To reverse FYE2022-04 Accruals 0.00 (2,429.50)

YEadj 52-170-03 YE 1 - To reverse FYE2022-04 Accruals 0.00 (1,015.00)

YEadj 52-170-05 YE 1 - To reverse FYE2022-04 Accruals 0.00 (1,087.50)

YEadj 52-170-06 YE 1 - To reverse FYE2022-04 Accruals 0.00 (1,760.00)

YEadj 18-100-00 YE 2 - To record FYE2023-04 Prepaids 2,497.50 0.00

YEadj 52-150-01 YE 2 - To record FYE2023-04 Prepaids 0.00 (1,967.50)

YEadj 52-290-26 YE 2 - To record FYE2023-04 Prepaids 0.00 (530.00)

YEadj 52-170-03 YE 3 - To record FYE2023-04 Expeses Due / Unpaid 1,045.00 0.00

YEadj 52-170-06 YE 3 - To record FYE2023-04 Expeses Due / Unpaid 1,810.00 0.00

YEadj 20-110-00 YE 3 - To record FYE2023-04 Expeses Due / Unpaid 0.00 (2,855.00)

11,644.50 (11,644.50)

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
Year End Close Adjustments Journal

As of Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2023

20 of 67



River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

Monthly Financial Report

For the Month Ended

May 31, 2023

Prepared By

668 N. RIVER ROAD • NAPERVILLE, ILLINOIS 60563

PHONE 630.393.1483 • FAX 630.393.2516

www.lauterbachamen.com

21 of 67



River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

Table of Contents
Starting

on
Page

Accountants' Compilation Report................................................................................................ 1-1

Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis................................................................... 2-1

Statement of Changes in Net Position - Modified Cash Basis................................................ 2-2

Other Supplementary Information

Cash & Investments - Pie Chart.............................................................................................. 3-1

Cash Analysis Report.............................................................................................................. 4-1

Cash Analysis Summary - Graph............................................................................................ 5-1

Revenue Report....................................................................................................................... 6-1

Expenses - Bar Chart............................................................................................................... 7-1

Expense Report........................................................................................................................ 8-1

Member Contribution Report.................................................................................................. 9-1

Payroll Batch Report............................................................................................................... 10-1

Quarterly Vendor Check Report.............................................................................................. 11-1

22 of 67



Accountants' Compilation Report

23 of 67



July 05, 2023

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
400 Park Avenue
River Forest, IL 60305

To Members of the Pension Board:

Management is responsible for the accompanying interim financial statements of the River Forest
Firefighters' Pension Fund which comprise the statement of net position - modified cash basis as of May
31, 2023 and the related statement of changes in net position - modified cash basis for the one month
then ended in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting and for determining that the
modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable financial reporting framework. We have performed a
compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. We did not audit or review the interim financial statements nor were we
required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided
by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of
assurance on these interim financial statements.

The interim financial statements are prepared in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting,
which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in interim
financial statements prepared in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting. If the omitted
disclosures were included in the interim financial statements and other supplementary information,
they might influence the user's conclusions about the Pension Fund's assets, liabilities, net position,
additions and deductions. Accordingly, the interim financial statements and other supplementary
information are not designed for those who are not informed about such matters.

Other Matter

The other supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management.
The other supplementary information was subject to our compilation engagement. We have not audited
or reviewed the other supplementary information nor were we required to perform any procedures to
verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on the other supplementary
information.

Cordially,

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP
Lauterbach & Amen, LLP

1-1
24 of 67



Financial Statements

25 of 67



Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 234,564.25$

Investments at Fair Market Value

Illinois Funds 34,018.22

Pooled Investments 16,719,455.81

Total Cash and Investments 16,988,038.28

Prepaids 2,497.50

Total Assets 16,990,535.78

Liabilities

Expenses Due/Unpaid 2,855.00

Total Liabilities 2,855.00

Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits 16,987,680.78

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis

As of May 31, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report
2-1

26 of 67



Additions

Contributions - Municipal 0.00$

Contributions - Members 18,001.88

Total Contributions 18,001.88

Investment Income

Interest and Dividends Earned 29,768.02

Net Change in Fair Value (239,122.29)

Total Investment Income (209,354.27)

Less Investment Expense (576.21)

Net Investment Income (209,930.48)

Total Additions (191,928.60)

Deductions

Administration 1,950.00

Pension Benefits and Refunds

Pension Benefits 179,029.79

Refunds 0.00

Total Deductions 180,979.79

Change in Position (372,908.39)

Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

Beginning of Year 17,360,589.17

End of Period 16,987,680.78

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
Statement of Changes in Net Position - Modified Cash Basis

For the One Month Ended May 31, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report
2-2

27 of 67



Other Supplementary Information

28 of 67



River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

Cash & Cash Equivalents
1%

Illinois Funds
0%

Pooled Investments 
99%

Cash and Investments

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
 3-1

29 of 67



06/30/22 07/31/22 08/31/22 09/30/22 10/31/22 11/30/22 12/31/22 01/31/23 02/28/23 03/31/23 04/30/23 05/31/23

Financial Institutions

BMO Harris Bank - CK 141,047$ 139,059 252,625 243,246 241,061 240,838 235,687 235,182 231,952 229,403 230,306 234,564

141,047 139,059 252,625 243,246 241,061 240,838 235,687 235,182 231,952 229,403 230,306 234,564

IMET - Convenience Fund 9,347 9,359 9,375 9,393 9,416 - - - - - - -

Illinois Funds - MM 919,100 788,546 506,404 24,982 41,683 62,826 467,597 2,892 26,043 504,319 15,919 34,018

928,447 797,905 515,779 34,375 51,099 62,826 467,597 2,892 26,043 504,319 15,919 34,018

Total 1,069,494 936,964 768,404 277,621 292,160 303,664 703,284 238,074 257,995 733,722 246,225 268,582

Contributions
Current Tax 9,409 3,698 - - - - 387,467 362,869 6,261 460,994 444,523 -

Contributions - Current Year 16,471 44,361 16,533 18,166 16,619 20,996 16,754 17,278 16,854 16,849 21,173 18,002

25,880 48,059 16,533 18,166 16,619 20,996 404,221 380,147 23,115 477,843 465,696 18,002

Expenses
Pension Benefits 179,827 179,827 186,419 180,009 180,321 180,321 180,321 184,340 184,340 184,340 184,340 179,030

Administration 2,690 2,236 2,253 11,426 3,018 9,702 7,208 1,823 5,799 4,934 (634) 2,526

182,517 182,063 188,672 191,435 183,339 190,023 187,529 186,163 190,139 189,274 183,706 181,556

Total Contributions less Expenses (156,637) (134,004) (172,139) (173,269) (166,720) (169,027) 216,692 193,984 (167,024) 288,569 281,990 (163,554)

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
Cash Analysis Report

For the Twelve Periods Ending May 31, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report
4-1

30 of 67



River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

Cash Analysis Summary

Cash & Money Market Balances Total Contributions Benefit & Administrative Expenses

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
 5-1

31 of 67



Contributions
Contributions - Members

41-410-00 - Contributions - Current Year 18,001.88 1 18,001.88
18,001.88 18,001.88

Total Contributions 18,001.88 7 18,001.88

Investment Income
Interest and Dividends

43-102-09 - BMO Harris Bank 238.53 1 238.53
43-106-01 - Illinois Funds - Money Market 97.66 1 97.66
43-800-01 - IFPIF Consolidated Pool Dividend 11,538.35 1 11,538.35
43-800-02 - IFPIF Consolidated Pool Interest 17,453.51 1 17,453.51
43-800-03 - IFPIF Contribution Interest 439.97 1 439.97

29,768.02 9 29,768.02

Gains and Losses
44-800-01 - IFPIF Consolidated Pool - Unrealized (238,265.96) 1 (238,265.96)
44-800-02 - IFPIF Consolidated Pool - Realized (856.33) 1 (856.33)

(239,122.29) 4 (239,122.29)

Total Investment Income (209,354.27) 2
2

(209,354.27)

Total Revenue (191,352.39) (191,352.39)

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
Revenue Report as of May 31, 2023

Received Received
this Month this Year

See Accountants' Compilation Report
6-1

32 of 67



River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

Service Duty Disability Surviving Spouse Administrative
Expenses 134,218 7,471 37,341 2,526 

Pension Benefits and Expenses

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
 7-1

33 of 67



Expended Expended

this Month this Year

Pensions and Benefits
51-020-00 - Service Pensions 134,217.68$ 134,217.68
51-040-00 - Duty Disability Pensions 7,470.91 7,470.91
51-060-00 - Surviving Spouse Pensions 37,341.20 37,341.20

Total Pensions and Benefits 179,029.79 179,029.79

Administrative
Professional Services

52-170-03 - Accounting & Bookkeeping Services 1,045.00 1,045.00
52-170-06 - PSA/Court Reporter 905.00 905.00

1,950.00 1,950.00

Investment
52-195-02 - Other Fee & Expenses (IFPIF) 222.10 222.10
52-195-03 - Management Fee (IFPIF) 294.27 294.27
52-195-05 - Other Expenses (IFPIF) 59.84 59.84

576.21 576.21

Total Administrative 2,526.21 2,526.21

Total Expenses 181,556.00 181,556.00

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
Expense Report as of May 31, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report
8-1

34 of 67



 Thru Current
Prior Fiscal Fiscal Service Total

Name Year Year Purchase Refunds Contributions

Basa, Matthew D. $ 42,764.37 785.93 0.00 0.00 43,550.30
Bencik, Jason E. 70,815.74 905.47 0.00 0.00 71,721.21
Bochenek, David M. 146,615.32 1,181.88 0.00 0.00 147,797.20
Boyd, Quentin A. 106,435.29 1,013.13 0.00 0.00 107,448.42
Buchholz, Jonathan P. 44,951.97 780.26 0.00 0.00 45,732.23
Carter, John E. 206,137.75 1,145.94 0.00 0.00 207,283.69
Doran, Christopher C. 132,322.09 908.62 0.00 0.00 133,230.71
Ercoli, Jarrett M. 19,029.45 659.78 0.00 0.00 19,689.23
Finfrock, Lucas J. 103,494.22 908.62 0.00 0.00 104,402.84
Fischer, Stephen G. 171,814.20 913.35 0.00 0.00 172,727.55
Howe, Adam J. 68,118.09 900.74 0.00 0.00 69,018.83
Howe, Edward F. 184,967.39 1,115.69 0.00 0.00 186,083.08
Krall, Matthew K. 70,695.80 901.69 0.00 0.00 71,597.49
Kyles, Timothy E. Jr. 0.00 579.48 0.00 0.00 579.48
McKenna, Brian T. 49,686.73 822.79 0.00 0.00 50,509.52
Rouse, Jonathan W. 26,749.87 699.94 0.00 0.00 27,449.81
Seablom, Adam R. 54,695.37 832.24 0.00 0.00 55,527.61
Smith, Michael P. 183,351.68 1,122.78 0.00 0.00 184,474.46
Viera, Adan 122,432.92 905.47 0.00 0.00 123,338.39
Zipperich, Paul B. 171,783.03 918.08 0.00 0.00 172,701.11

Totals 1,976,861.28 18,001.88 0.00 0.00 1,994,863.16

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
Member Contribution Report

As of Month Ended May 31, 2023

 See Accountants' Compilation Report
9-1

35 of 67



Duty Disability

***-**2182

109397 Fahy, Patrick J.

0

$3,811.62 $3,811.62 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**2182 Subtotal: $3,811.62 $3,811.62 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**2110

109398 Schejbal, James F.

0

$3,579.07 $3,659.29 $0.00 $65.98 $14.24 $0.00

***-**2110 Subtotal: $3,579.07 $3,659.29 $0.00 $65.98 $14.24 $0.00

Duty Disability Subtotal: $7,390.69 $7,470.91 $0.00 $65.98 $14.24 $0.00

Service

***-**3560

120753 Bohlmann, Kurt B.

0

$8,783.38 $11,054.86 $1,122.61 $114.63 $0.00 $1,034.24

***-**3560 Subtotal: $8,783.38 $11,054.86 $1,122.61 $114.63 $0.00 $1,034.24

***-**7938

110935 Daugherty, William J.

0

$6,457.00 $8,117.86 $397.37 $0.00 $0.00 $1,263.49

***-**7938 Subtotal: $6,457.00 $8,117.86 $397.37 $0.00 $0.00 $1,263.49

***-**2389

111043 Finnegan, Mark T.

0

$7,140.05 $9,110.49 $1,122.61 $127.45 $0.00 $720.38

Batches 61773 River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

SSN Family ID Employee Name

Alt Payee Name

ACH

Check #

Net Amount Member
Gross

Medical
Insurance

Dental
Insurance

Life
Insurance

Federal Tax

Multiple Batch Report Check Date 5/31/2023 12:00:00 AM

Retro

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
10-1 36 of 67



***-**2389 Subtotal: $7,140.05 $9,110.49 $1,122.61 $127.45 $0.00 $720.38

***-**8444

106833 Law, Dennis J.

0

$4,070.51 $4,079.50 $0.00 $0.00 $8.99 $0.00

***-**8444 Subtotal: $4,070.51 $4,079.50 $0.00 $0.00 $8.99 $0.00

***-**8043

112495 Law, Michael D.

0

$5,135.67 $5,619.44 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $483.77

***-**8043 Subtotal: $5,135.67 $5,619.44 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $483.77

***-**6763

106828 Lidinsky, Richard T.

0

$7,635.75 $9,061.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,375.71

106828 Payment to Access Credit
Union,  Lidinsky -

0

$50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**6763 Subtotal: $7,685.75 $9,061.46 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,375.71

***-**0172

106827 Marrocco, Timothy

0

$111.42 $111.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**0172 Subtotal: $111.42 $111.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**4999

111666 Newberry, John J.

0

$5,190.96 $6,385.55 $610.85 $38.47 $0.56 $544.71

Batches 61773 River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

SSN Family ID Employee Name

Alt Payee Name

ACH

Check #

Net Amount Member
Gross

Medical
Insurance

Dental
Insurance

Life
Insurance

Federal Tax

Multiple Batch Report Check Date 5/31/2023 12:00:00 AM

Retro

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
10-2 37 of 67



***-**4999 Subtotal: $5,190.96 $6,385.55 $610.85 $38.47 $0.56 $544.71

***-**1107

110549 Nortier, Robert A.

0

$7,472.01 $9,456.52 $916.51 $78.80 $0.56 $988.64

***-**1107 Subtotal: $7,472.01 $9,456.52 $916.51 $78.80 $0.56 $988.64

***-**1730

106819 Nummer, Russell W.

0

$6,951.98 $10,444.55 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,292.57

106819 Payment to Access Credit
Union,  Nummer -

0

$2,200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**1730 Subtotal: $9,151.98 $10,444.55 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,292.57

***-**1514

106829 Powell Sr, Richard H.

0

$5,791.97 $8,666.96 $0.00 $0.00 $8.99 $1,100.00

106829 Payment to Access Credit
Union,  Powell -

0

$1,478.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

106829 Blue Cross Blue Shield of
Illinois

187

$288.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**1514 Subtotal: $7,557.97 $8,666.96 $0.00 $0.00 $8.99 $1,100.00

***-**0064

115980 Rose, John M.

0

$7,938.26 $8,793.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $855.39

Batches 61773 River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

SSN Family ID Employee Name

Alt Payee Name

ACH

Check #

Net Amount Member
Gross

Medical
Insurance

Dental
Insurance

Life
Insurance

Federal Tax

Multiple Batch Report Check Date 5/31/2023 12:00:00 AM

Retro

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
10-3 38 of 67



***-**0064 Subtotal: $7,938.26 $8,793.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $855.39

***-**5659

106821 Schoff, Robert H.

0

$8,100.10 $9,515.36 $0.00 $25.65 $0.00 $1,389.61

***-**5659 Subtotal: $8,100.10 $9,515.36 $0.00 $25.65 $0.00 $1,389.61

***-**5896

106823 Stamm, Paul J.

0

$7,813.41 $9,031.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,217.60

***-**5896 Subtotal: $7,813.41 $9,031.01 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,217.60

***-**7868

106824 Telkamp, Lester H.

0

$6,393.33 $7,924.16 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,530.83

***-**7868 Subtotal: $6,393.33 $7,924.16 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,530.83

***-**4199

106830 Vondracek, Arthur W.

0

$6,096.70 $7,884.22 $506.66 $25.65 $7.97 $1,247.24

***-**4199 Subtotal: $6,096.70 $7,884.22 $506.66 $25.65 $7.97 $1,247.24

***-**6387

106825 Witken, David B.

0

$7,565.72 $8,960.67 $397.37 $114.63 $0.00 $882.95

***-**6387 Subtotal: $7,565.72 $8,960.67 $397.37 $114.63 $0.00 $882.95

Service Subtotal: $112,664.22 $134,217.68 $5,073.98 $525.28 $27.07 $15,927.13

Batches 61773 River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

SSN Family ID Employee Name

Alt Payee Name

ACH

Check #

Net Amount Member
Gross

Medical
Insurance

Dental
Insurance

Life
Insurance

Federal Tax

Multiple Batch Report Check Date 5/31/2023 12:00:00 AM

Retro

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
10-4 39 of 67



Surviving Spouse

***-**9623

108225 Barth, Charlotte B.

0

$2,256.40 $2,494.96 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $238.56

***-**9623 Subtotal: $2,256.40 $2,494.96 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $238.56

***-**8921

108223 Bentel, Loretta H.

0

$4,677.45 $7,364.35 $596.06 $0.00 $0.00 $1,090.84

108223 Payment to Fifth Third Bank,
Bentel -

0

$1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**8921 Subtotal: $5,677.45 $7,364.35 $596.06 $0.00 $0.00 $1,090.84

***-**6579

106832 Bentel, Ruth M.

0

$5,611.54 $6,490.65 $0.00 $38.47 $0.00 $840.64

***-**6579 Subtotal: $5,611.54 $6,490.65 $0.00 $38.47 $0.00 $840.64

***-**9173

109394 Daudelin, Evelyn M.

0

$1,702.05 $1,732.23 $0.00 $0.00 $30.18 $0.00

***-**9173 Subtotal: $1,702.05 $1,732.23 $0.00 $0.00 $30.18 $0.00

***-**2973

106831 Diebold, Linda L.

0

$4,500.13 $4,992.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $492.56

Batches 61773 River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

SSN Family ID Employee Name

Alt Payee Name

ACH

Check #

Net Amount Member
Gross

Medical
Insurance

Dental
Insurance

Life
Insurance

Federal Tax

Multiple Batch Report Check Date 5/31/2023 12:00:00 AM

Retro

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
10-5 40 of 67



***-**2973 Subtotal: $4,500.13 $4,992.69 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $492.56

***-**3791

106826 Gerard, Pauline M.

0

$4,416.65 $4,416.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**3791 Subtotal: $4,416.65 $4,416.65 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**0510

106822 Hlavaty, Evelyn

0

$3,635.47 $4,135.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00

***-**0510 Subtotal: $3,635.47 $4,135.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00

***-**5533

109396 Rausch, Patricia E.

0

$4,654.49 $4,692.96 $0.00 $38.47 $0.00 $0.00

***-**5533 Subtotal: $4,654.49 $4,692.96 $0.00 $38.47 $0.00 $0.00

***-**1867

106834 Riley, Lorraine A.

0

$1,021.24 $1,021.24 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

***-**1867 Subtotal: $1,021.24 $1,021.24 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Surviving Spouse Subtotal: $33,475.42 $37,341.20 $596.06 $76.94 $30.18 $3,162.60

Batches 61773 River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

SSN Family ID Employee Name

Alt Payee Name

ACH

Check #

Net Amount Member
Gross

Medical
Insurance

Dental
Insurance

Life
Insurance

Federal Tax

Multiple Batch Report Check Date 5/31/2023 12:00:00 AM

Retro

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
10-6 41 of 67



Batches 61773 River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund

SSN Family ID Employee Name

Alt Payee Name

ACH

Check #

Net Amount Member
Gross

Medical
Insurance

Dental
Insurance

Life
Insurance

Federal Tax

Multiple Batch Report Check Date 5/31/2023 12:00:00 AM

Retro

Totals
ACH Flag Payments Net Payment Total Gross Medical

Insurance
Dental

Insurance
Life Insurance Federal Tax

Yes

No

Grand Total

32

1

33

$153,242.33

$288.00

$153,530.33

$179,029.79

$0.00

$179,029.79

$5,670.04

$0.00

$5,670.04

$668.20

$0.00

$668.20

$71.49

$0.00

$71.49

$19,089.73

$0.00

$19,089.73

See Accountants' Compilation Report 
10-7 42 of 67



Check Invoice Check

Date Number Vendor Name Amount Amount

03/09/23 30514 Karlson Garza McQueary, LLC
52-170-05 #1587 Legal Service 750.00

ACH Amount (Direct Deposit) 750.00

03/27/23 30517 Lauterbach & Amen, LLP
52-170-03 #75985 02/23 Accounting & Benefits 1,045.00

52-170-06 #75985 02/23 PSA 905.00

52-170-03 #75498 FYE22 1099's 515.00
ACH Amount (Direct Deposit) 2,465.00

03/31/23 30515 Village of River Forest - Insurance
20-220-00 Medical Insurance - 03/23 5,670.04

20-220-00 Dental Insurance 668.20

20-220-00 Life Insurance 71.49
ACH Amount (Direct Deposit) 6,409.73

03/31/23 30516 Internal Revenue Service
20-230-00 Internal Revenue Service 19,020.10

ACH Amount (Direct Deposit) 19,020.10

03/31/23 50293 IFPIF
52-195-02 Other Fee & Expenses 364.37
52-195-01 Administrator Expenses 1,339.52

52-195-05 Other Expenses 14.89
Check Amount 1,718.78

04/28/23 30518 Village of River Forest - Insurance
20-220-00 Medical Insurance - 04/23 5,670.04

20-220-00 Dental Insurance 668.20

20-220-00 Life Insurance 71.49
ACH Amount (Direct Deposit) 6,409.73

04/28/23 30519 Internal Revenue Service
20-230-00 Internal Revenue Service 19,089.73

ACH Amount (Direct Deposit) 19,089.73

04/30/23 50294 IFPIF
52-195-02 Other Fee & Expenses 423.84

52-195-05 Other Expenses 17.66
Check Amount 441.50

05/08/23 30520 Lauterbach & Amen, LLP
52-170-03 #76963 03/23 Accounting & Benefits 1,045.00

52-170-06 #76963 03/23 PSA 905.00
ACH Amount (Direct Deposit) 1,950.00

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
Quarterly Vendor Check Report

All Bank Accounts
March 1, 2023 - May 31, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report
11-1

43 of 67



Check Invoice Check

Date Number Vendor Name Amount Amount

05/31/23 30521 Village of River Forest - Insurance
20-220-00 Medical Insurance - 05/23 5,670.04

20-220-00 Dental Insurance 668.20

20-220-00 Life Insurance 71.49
ACH Amount (Direct Deposit) 6,409.73

05/31/23 30522 Internal Revenue Service
20-230-00 Internal Revenue Service 19,089.73

ACH Amount (Direct Deposit) 19,089.73

05/31/23 50295 IFPIF
52-195-02 Other Fee & Expenses 222.10

52-195-05 Other Expenses 59.84

52-195-03 Management Fee 294.27
Check Amount 576.21

Total Payments 84,330.24

River Forest Firefighters' Pension Fund
Quarterly Vendor Check Report

All Bank Accounts
March 1, 2023 - May 31, 2023

See Accountants' Compilation Report
11-2

44 of 67



45 of 67

amichael
Highlight

amichael
Highlight

amichael
Highlight

amichael
Highlight

amichael
Highlight

amichael
Highlight

amichael
Highlight

amichael
Highlight

amichael
Highlight



Organization: Year: 2023

Hours 
Completed

Date 
Completed Cert on File

1
2
3
4
5
6

Hours 
Completed

Date 
Completed Cert on File

1
2
3
4
5
6

Hours 
Completed

Date 
Completed Cert on File

1
2
3
4
5
6

Hours 
Completed

Date 
Completed Cert on File

1
2
3
4
5
6

Hours 
Completed

Date 
Completed Cert on File

1 8
2
3
4
5
6

Hours 
Completed

Date 
Completed Cert on File

1
2
3
4
5
6

8

Certified Trustee Training
 River Forest Fire Pension Fund

Stephen Fischer

Hours Required Type of Training

John Carter

Hours Required Type of Training
8

Lester Telkamp

Hours Required Type of Training
8

Tom Severson

Hours Required Type of Training
16

Rosemary McAdams 

Hours Required Type of Training

Hours Required Type of Training

Page 1 of 1

46 of 67



 

2023 IPPFA Trustee Training Opportunities 

 

47 of 67



2023 IPPFA Trustee Training Opportunities 
 

IPPFA ONLINE SEMINAR COURSE 
 

WHEN: Ongoing 

• Online 8 hr. seminar (Recorded from the 2021 MidAmerican Pension 

Conference) 

WHERE: IPPFA Website: 
www.ippfa.org/education/online-classes/ 

COST: IPPFA MEMBER: $275.00/seminar 
IPPFA NON-MEMBER: $525.00/seminar 

This online seminar agenda includes: 
• Pension Obligation Bond Panel 

• Consolidation Update Panel 

• Mock Disability Trial 

• Keynote Speaker Admiral Foggo 
• Ask an Attorney and Legal Updates 
• Covid-19 Vaccinations and Workplace Rules 

• Ask an Administrator 
• Re-Entry into Actie Service and Hot it has Evolved Over Time 

 

-this online seminar satisfies 8 hours of the required continuing pension trustee training 

· 
 
IPPFA IN PERSON SEMINAR COURSE 
 

WHEN:              November 14, 2023 
 
WHERE:            John A. Logan College 
             700 Logan College Road, F104 
                           Carterville, IL 62918 
 
TIME:             8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.  
 
COST:  IPPFA MEMBER: $225.00 

 IPPFA NON-MEMBER: $450.00

48 of 67

http://www.ippfa.org/education/online-classes/


16-hour Certified Trustee Programs* offered through IPPFA 
 

IPPFA ONLINE Certified Trustee Program 

 
COST:  IPPFA MEMBER:     $  550.00 

               IPPFA NON-MEMBER:  $1,100.00 
 

Registration is online at the IPPFA website www.ippfa.org/education/trustee-program/ 

 
 

IPPFA IN PERSON Certified Trustee Program 
 

WHEN: December 5-6, 2023  
 
TIME:  7:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.  
 
WHERE: NIU Outreach Campus 
  1120 E. Diehl Road, Room 266 
  Naperville, IL 60563 
 
COST: IPPFA MEMBER: $500.00 
          IPPFA NON-MEMBER: $1,000.00 
  *Walk-ins will be charged an additional $25 
 
Registration is online at the IPPFA website www.ippfa.org/education/trustee-program/ 

 
*On December 18, 2019, Governor J.B. Pritzker signed SB 1300, making it Public Act 101-0610. This act 
will consolidate all Article 3 and 4 pension fund's investment assets. Under Public Act 101-0610, training 
requirements have now been reduced from 32-hours to 16-hours of new trustee training, however all 
pension trustees will still need 4-hours of mandatory consolidation transition training. 

 
All Article 3 & 4 Pension Trustees elected or appointed are required to complete the 16-hour trustee 
certification course within 18 months of election or appointment to the board. 

 

 
 

49 of 67

http://www.ippfa.org/education/trustee-program/
http://www.ippfa.org/education/trustee-program/


IPFA Pension Seminar
November 3, 2023
Empress Banquets
Addison, IL 

Registration is not open yet. 

50 of 67



51 of 67



��������	��
�����������
������������������������������������� �!" �!##$%"�� ��&�%����'�()$�%��*�!" ��&�%����+�(,%&�-./��&0*��$�!��#�"0%$"1$!& ��&20���0�!&��&�32%&� ��$�#!&�%�%#!���%"�0�!��45!" !�� ��&20������&�%-�!�%$"��&!%"%".�/!���$"0%0�0�$6�!����!0��78�/$2&0�%"��/�%&�-&0��9�!&�!0�!��&20���:�;"�!  %�%$"<��&20���0�520��$5#�����!�5%"%525�$6��%./��/$2&0�$6��$"�%"2%".��&20����� 2�!�%$"�!""2!��9��/�&�!6��&:=>?�@AABCDBE�FGCBHBIJA�K?JLG?�IMDNBO?EP>BE�H?MPBQHJPBDC�PMJBCBCL�JP�CD�H>JML?�PD�JAA�PMGEP??ERSABHT�>?M?�PD�U?LBC�VDGM�I?CEBDC�PMGEP??�PMJBCBCLRW/%0��&!%"%".�%0�#&$X% � �$"�%"��!" �%"�!��$& !"���Y%�/�0�!�2�$&9�&�32%&�5�"�0:Z?CEBDC�=MGEP??�S?MPBQHJPBDC�[JHP�\>??P�BCIJMPC?ME>BI]BP> �_̂�̀ab�cdef�gbfhijakh�lfmdlnjkm�olijpqf�r�al�olijpqf�s�tfkhjak�ilbhiff�pflijupdijakvtqfdhf�pakidpi�bh�ẁ�fxdjq�di�tfkhjakilbhiffhyjxqzalmz
52 of 67



RESPONSE TIME
QUARTERLYNEWS FOR FIRST RESPONDERS

z

July 2023 Vol. 6 Iss. 3

Use A Dedicated Account for Pension Work
While itʼs very easy to use your work or personal email as a central mode of communication related to
pension, or work adjacent activity, this may have unintended consequences. As a firm, we strongly
recommended any non-related department work, (e.g. pension business) be communicated through a
dedicated email account. We suggest not only avoiding your work email, but also your personal email, for
this type of communication.

Using your work email gives the department unfettered access to your communications. This could mean
unintentionally diminishing privileged communications with your attorney. Importantly, if privilege is
waived it may not be “unwaived.”

As members of a public body, by virtue of your positions on the pension boards, your communications
are subject to both the Illinois Freedom of Information Act and the Illinois Records Retention Act. If
trustees use their personal email addresses, those email accounts now must be combed through for
information if a request is made pursuant to FOIA, or there is any involvement in a lawsuit and discovery
is requested. Additionally, using personal accounts for public business means you must maintain those
records—you must keep any email communications related to public business. If you were to delete any
communications, it may give rise to issues. Having a separate account helps avoid this issue altogether.

This extends to the use of your privately owned cell phones as it relates to communications regarding
public matters. Best practice – completely avoid use of any text messages regarding public matters. Once
again, these communications are subject to FOIA and discovery matters. There may also be certain record
retention requirements on such communications.

In sum, KGM recommends using an email exclusively dedicated to public matters and never texting
regarding public matters

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
1 53 of 67



FIRST RESPONDER MENTAL HEALTH RESOURCES

Suicide & Crisis Lifeline: 988

MAP: (630) 759-4925

IAFF: 202-824- 8626

PBPA:
http://www.pbpa.org/Resources/Links.aspx

FOP: (866) 535-1078

Text BLUE to 741741: Crisis Text Line free,
24/7, and confidential crisis text service.

The National Suicide Prevention Hotline
1-800-273-TALK

Cop 2 Cop 1-866-COP-2COP

Safe Call Now 1-206-459-3020

Serve & Protect 1-615-373-8000

Share the Load 1-888-731-3473

Copline 1-800-267-5463

Frontline Helpline 1-800-676-7500 (First
Responder Call-Takers)

CIST (Critical Incident Support Team):
866-535-1078

Anonymous Complaints Subject to
Full Investigation in Chicago
PBPA v. City of Chicago
PBPA Chapters 156A, 156B, and 156C
represent the sergeants, lieutenants, and
captains for the Chicago Police Department,
(collectively “PBPA” or “Plaintiffs”). The City
and PBPA engaged in interest arbitration a�er
reaching impasse on negotiations for a
successor agreement. At the center of this

dispute were two issues: (1) anonymous
complaints against officers; and (2)
mandatory participation in wellness training.

Under the CBA, complaints against officers are
given a preliminary investigation by the
Department through either the Civilian Office
of Police Accountability or the Bureau of
Internal Affairs. However, a full investigation is
conducted under two scenarios: (1) an
affidavit is filed with the complaint, or (2) the
underlying conduct was a criminal offense.
Meaning, anonymous (and unverified)
complaints could not be the subject of a
complaint register investigation unless a
criminal offense was alleged. Further, neither
residency nor medical roll abuse could be the
subject of an unverified complaint register
investigation and no discipline could result,
unless the information was criminal in nature.
The CBA also included a side letter which
permitted either the Head of Internal Affairs or
the Office of Professional Standards to sign an
affidavit in good faith.

PBPA proposed to maintain the status quo.
However, the City sought to extend the
affidavit override process to permit full
investigations into all anonymous complaints.
Specifically, the City sought to amend the
provision to permit a full investigation
following the receipt of any affidavit.

Pursuant to arbitration procedure, the matter
was initially brought before the Dispute
Resolution Board (“Board”). The Board
adopted the Cityʼs new provision. However, it
limited the use of partial, unverified-based
investigations. The Board further ruled PBPA
members were required to participate in the
Cityʼs wellness plan or be assessed a $50
monthly penalty.

In July 2020, the new CBA was ratified. That
same month, PBPA sought review in the
circuit court. In addition to the complaint filed
in the Circuit Court, PBPA also filed an unfair

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
2 54 of 67

http://www.pbpa.org/Resources/Links.aspx
http://www.pbpa.org/Resources/Links.aspx
http://www.ilfop.org/CIST.aspx
https://bluehelp.org/)
http://codegreencampaign.org/


labor practice (“ULP”) charge against the City.
PBPA alleged the City improperly brought
permissive subjects of bargaining to
arbitration. The ILRB stayed the matter
pending the outcome of judicial review.

The circuit court affirmed the Boardʼs
decision. On appeal, PBPA argued the Board
had exceeded its authority by considering the
new override provision as it believed it was a
permissive subject of bargaining, the new
procedure violated Illinois law, and penalizing
PBPA members based on participation in the
wellness program was arbitrary and
capricious.

The Appellate Court did not consider whether
an employeeʼs right to be free from
investigations pursuant to anonymous
complaints was a permissive subject of
bargaining. Rather, it determined this was a
matter to be determined by the ILRB, the
agency with the expertise to make such a
determination.

On whether the proposed language violated
Illinois law, the Appellate Court found it had
not. It reasoned, the Disciplinary Act, nor the
Labor Act, contained language requiring a
complaint against a police officer be
accompanied by an affidavit by a known or
anonymous complainant. Even so, if an
affidavit was required, the policy permits an
agency official to sign the affidavit a�er
careful review of the preliminary evidence.

The Appellate Court agreed with the circuit
court that PBPA failed to show how the Board
was empowered to direct LMCC to terminate
participation in the wellness program. As
such, PBPA failed to show the decision was
arbitrary and capricious. Ultimately, the
circuit court decision affirming the Board was
affirmed by the Appellate Court.

PEDA Amended to Protect Against
Abuse of Home Rule Power
Public Act 103-0063
The Public Employee Disability Act (“PEDA”)
was amended to preclude home rule units
from exercising home rule authority, in any
way, in a manner inconsistent with PEDA.
Meaning, local governments may not use
home rule authority to create local
ordinances to circumvent or reduce PEDA
benefits.

IL Supreme Court Permits Compelled
Production of Cell Phone Passcode
People v. Sneed
Keiron Sneed was charged with two counts of
forgery stemming from the falsification of two
paychecks payable to and endorsed by Sneed.
Sneed deposited the checks via mobile
deposit. Pursuant to the investigation, police
obtained a search warrant for Sneedʼs phone.
They were unable to execute the warrant
because Sneed refused to provide the
passcode into the phone. The State filed a
motion to compel production of the passcode
which the circuit court denied.

The circuit court denied the motion to
produce based on the Fi�h Amendment
privilege against self-incrimination, finding
compelling the information was tantamount
to testimonial communication. The State
appealed. The appellate court reversed. It
held producing a cell phone pass code was
not incriminating, testimonial communication
protected by the Fi�h Amendment. Sneed
appealed.
The Illinois Supreme Court affirmed the
appellate court. It found though compelling
the passcode was a testimonial

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
3 55 of 67



communication, it is only to the extent that
performing the act of entering the code
implicitly asserts the person entering the code
can unlock the phone—nothing more which
would implicate further considerations of the
Fi�h Amendment.

US DOL Clarifies FMLA Application to
Holiday Leave
The US Department of Labor issued an
opinion letter for a clarification on FMLA. Of
note, if an employee does not work on
holidays, those holidays do not count as
used while on FMLA leave. However, if an
employee would have otherwise worked
while on FMLA leave, those holidays do
count towards time off under the FMLA.

ILETSB To Provide A PTSD Czar
The Police Training Act was amended
empowering ILETSB to appoint a PTSD Mental
Health Coordinator. The PTSD Mental Health
Coordinator will be required to create and
implement a mental health support and
education system for law enforcement
officers. The Coordinator must be an active
law enforcement officer with a history of
developing and distributing mental health
evidence based training, and have an
established history of working with police
administrations and unions. Additional
responsibilities will include working with
police academies to introduce recruits to
issues and solutions, establish training,
establish a reference list of medical
professionals, establish peer support
programs, work with private companies
offering assistance to assure sound and
factual methods are being used, develop
studies with the State university system for
research, and set standards on continuing
education onmental health.

SURS Clarifies Line-of-Duty
Requirements for Police O�cers
Public Act 103-0080
The State University Retirement System
(“SURS”) portion of the Illinois Pension
Code was amended to clarify the conditions
by which college and university police
officers may be entitled to disability
benefits. To qualify for a line of duty
disability benefit, police officers who are
members of SURS are subject to the
following criteria: (1) a written certification
from one or more licensed and practicing
physicians appointed by or acceptable to
the board, stating the disability qualifies as
a line of duty disability; (2) the employer's
position on whether the disability qualifies
as a line of duty disability; and (3) any other
medical examinations, hospital records,
laboratory results, or other information
necessary for determining the employment
capacity and condition of the employee.

Mandatory Age of Retirement Plays
a Role in Certain Benefits
Salcedo v. Chicago Police Pension Bd.
Ruben Salcedo was a Chicago police officer. In
2008, he was involved in a motor vehicle
accident which caused several injuries
including a traumatic brain injury. Following
the accident, Ruben was awarded a line of
duty disability benefit. This award amounted
to 75% of his salary and his entitlement to
disability benefits continued so long as his
disability persisted or until he reached the age
of 63 (the mandatory age of retirement).
Ruben turned 63 in 2013. At that point, the
disability converted into a “life annuity.”

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
4 56 of 67



In 2018, Ruben passed away. His cause of
death was listed as gastrointestinal
hemorrhage, esophageal varices, and
decompensated cirrhosis. His widow, Maria
Salcedo, was awarded a monthly life annuity.
In 2021, Mrs. Salcedo filed a claim for a
widowʼs compensation annuity benefit
pursuant to 5-144 of the Illinois Pension Code.
Applying for a benefit under this provision
permits a widow to review a “compensation
annuity” and a “supplemental annuity.”

A widow is eligible for a compensation
annuity when the officer dies from an injury
incurred in the performance of an act of duty
and amounts to the difference between the
annuity and the amount equal to 75% of the
salary attached to the position as though he
was active and until the officer, had they lived,
reached the age of 63.

A widow is eligible for a supplemental annuity
when the compensation annuity terminates.
This supplemental annuity is the difference
between the widowʼs annuity and 75% of the
annual salary that the officer would have
been receiving when he reached 63 had he
been in the same rank. In both instances, the
death of the officer must be a direct result of
the injury, or the injury was of such a nature
as to prevent them from ever returning to
service.

Following a hearing, the Retirement Board
denied Mrs. Salcedoʼs claim. As to the basis of
its denial, the Board determined Ruben had
mandatorily retired by reaching age 63, his
inability to return to service was not based on
injury. In so finding, Ms. Salcedo was then not
eligible to receive her requested annuity.

In June 2021, Mrs. Salcedo sought
administrative review of the Boardʼs decision.

The circuit court upheld the Boardʼs decision,
agreeing the mandatory retirement age
precluded the requested annuity as it was an
intervening event. Mrs. Salcedo appealed.

The Appellate Court affirmed the Penson
Boardʼs decision. It held Rubenʼs mandatory
retirement at age 63 precluded Mrs. Salcedo
from receiving both a compensation annuity
and supplemental annuity, as annuities under
Section 5-144 apply to officer deaths before
the retirement age.

Disabled and Active First
Responders to have the Same
Health Insurance Options
The Public Safety Employee Benefit Act
(“PSEBA”) was amended, in part, requiring
employers to offer the same health
insurance plan to catastrophically injured
employees as the employer offers to its
full-time law enforcement, correctional,
probation officers, or firefighters. We expect
this to be bargained into most CBAs going
forward.

ILETSB May Now Create “Emergency
Rules” to Address Police Sta�ng Crisis
The Illinois Administrative Procedure Act now
permits ILETSB to create emergency rules
related to certifications of full-time and
part-time law enforcement officers for a
period of one year following the effective
date. This emergency rulemaking amendment
is made in response to changes made in
Sections 8.1 and 8.2 of the Police Training Act.
These rules were amended to include a
reciprocity waiver for out-of-state or federally
trained officers seeking a law enforcement
certification in Illinois.

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
5 57 of 67



DACA Aliens Permitted to Work as
Deputies
Public Act 103-0080
This amendment to the Counties Code
permits the sheriff of any county, or
corporate authority of any municipality, to
now employ any person who is legally
federally authorized to work and obtain a
firearm to be hired as a deputy sheriff or
special policeman. This includes individuals
against whom immigration action has been
deferred under DACA.

Trooper Fails to Sue his way into
“Good Standing”
Dunn v. Schmitz
Former ISP lieutenant, Kenneth Dunn,
brought suit against three Illinois State Police
(“ISP”) superiors for designating him “not in
good standing” at his time of retirement.

While Dunn was active, he was placed under
criminal investigation for mortgage fraud. He
was placed on restricted duty during the
pendency of the investigation. A note in his
record indicated he was the subject of a
federal criminal investigation. Though Dunn
admitted to participating in a voluntary
interview, the record did not reflect he was a
subject of an investigation. Dunn retired
during the investigation.

Dunn brought a due process claim under the
Fourteenth Amendment, alleging a
deprivation of a liberty interest, as his
retirement designation status interfered with
future occupational opportunities. He argued
ISP had disseminated information that he had
been stripped of his law enforcement
authority. This designation additionally
interfered with Dunnʼs eligibility to carry a

concealed weapon as a retired law
enforcement officer. Dunn appealed his
designation in February 2017, but was denied.

The trial court initially found in favor of
defendants, and the Seventh Circuit Court of
Appeals agreed. Dunn argued disclosure of his
retirement status to ILETSB, while he was not
truly under investigation, was dissemination
of stigmatizing information that could
interfere with his liberties interest (pursuing
future occupational opportunities). The
Seventh Circuit held the record did not
contain evidence ISP had shared his
retirement status, only that it could. Dunn
argued his status was subject to FOIA and
therefore could be disseminated. However,
the Court did not find this was sufficient to
establish dissemination of stigmatizing
information as disclosure under FOIA was not
a given, it may be exempted under one of its
many exceptions. The Seventh Circuit also
held Dunn had not established he was
foreclosed from all jobs requiring a concealed
carry license as he could still obtain a regular,
non-law enforcement retiree license, for any
position that required he carry a firearm.

Battered Kankakee Firefighter’s
Lawsuit Booted
Giese v. City of Kankakee
On October 18, 2018, Michelle Giese, along
with other firefighters, responded to a call at
senior living facility. The firefighters entered
the building. Lieutenant Nathan Boyce gave
an order for the firefighters to wait to proceed
through the fire doors until the hose was
charged. Giese did not recall hearing that
order. While Boyce was deploying the fire
hose, Giese and several other firefighters used
thermal imaging to assess conditions.

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
6 58 of 67



A�er investigation, the firefighters determined
the fire was contained and proceeded down
the hallway with the uncharged hose. They
heard moans and entered an apartment
finding a woman on fire. Boyce realized the
firefighters had violated his order and walked
into the hallway. He entered the apartment
and grabbed Giese by her harness, li�ing her
off the ground. He pushed and shoved her
into the hallway.

Giese notified supervisors; she met with Chief
Damon Schuldt. The chief instructed Giese to
alter her schedule to avoid Boyce. Boyce was
suspended for twenty-four hours and took an
anger management course. Boyce was also
directed to avoid working shi�s with Giese for
three months.

Giese, unhappy that she had to alter her
schedule to avoid Boyce and dissatisfied with
the Chiefʼs investigation, reported the
incident to the Cityʼs HR head, Elizabeth
Kubal. Ten minutes a�er Giese reported, Chief
Schuldt called Giese demanding to knowwhy
she spoke to HR and reiterating his order to
change her schedule to avoid working with
Boyce.

Giese experienced physical symptoms of
stress and psychological trauma. She used
sick time and put in a workersʼ compensation
claim for reimbursement of that sick time,
which was granted.

On March 13, 2019, Giese visited the firehouse
where she was informed Chief Schuldt had
advised everyone to not speak to Giese
because of a pending lawsuit. This was false.
Chief Schuldt alleged James Ellexson, the new
head of human resources, advised him not to
speak with Giese.

On April 5, 2019, Giese filed a complaint with
the EEOC. A week later, Ellexson notified Giese
if she did not return to work on April 15, 2019,
she would be terminated. Giese returned to
work April 14, 2019, in a light duty capacity.
She worked light duty until May 10, 2019. She
was sent home on this date a�er breaking out
in hives and blisters, and had high blood
pressure. She never returned to work.

Giese brought suit against the City, Schuldt,
and Boyce for retaliation in violation of Title
VII. In part, the suit alleged Defendants
condoned aggressive and inappropriate
behaviors as part of a “code of silence.” The
district court found in favor of Defendants,
holding Giese failed to establish she had been
deprived any right and did not face retaliation
a�er filing her EEOC claim. The court held that
was the only protected activity.

The Seventh Circuit found Giese had not
established the City condoned the behavior
because it was not widespread. Because this
was a single firefighter acting in an
unprecedented matter, it did not establish a
widespread practice leading to condonation.
The Seventh Circuit also determined Giese did
not establish a Title VII sex discrimination
claim because she had not notified HR she
believed she was being discriminated against
because of her sex when she reported. The
Seventh Circuit agreed the only protected
activity Giese conducted was filing the EEOC
claim. Once she did that, Giese did not face
any adverse employment action.

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
7 59 of 67



Police O�cers Not Eligible for Recall
After Age 60
The Illinois Pension Code was amended to
preclude disabled police officers and sheriff
deputies from being subject to recall once
they reach age 60. This provision may be in
response to an abuse of the recall provision
by the City of North Chicago. As a reminder,
police officers who are on a disability
pension may be recalled to service in the
case of a bona fide emergency.

911 Calls Sometimes Not Subject to
FOIA
Edgar County Watchdogs v. Will County Sheri� ’s
O�ce.
The Edgar County Watchdogs (“ECW”) filed
two Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”)
requests with the Will County Sheriffʼs Office.
The first FOIA request, filed August 7, 2019,
sought 911 calls for Wesley Rivals Township
Park and Rivals Park from June 2019 as well as
any reports generated or 911 calls for August
6, 2019, at the two locations.

On August 13, 2019, the Sheriff granted in part
and denied in part the request. While it
provided a heavily redacted report form
August 6, it denied the release for 911 calls
from that date. In response, on August 13,
2019, ECW narrowed its request, seeking 911
calls for seven specific incidents occurring in
June and August 2019. This was denied in full.

Meanwhile, ECW filed another FOIA on August
8, 2019, seeking 911 calls and reports for the
park or Wesley Township. The Sheriff
provided two redacted reports and denied the
911 calls. ECW filed in circuit court seeking

production of the 911 calls and unredacted
portions of reports.

At trial, the Sheriff argued it denied the 911
calls based on confidentiality provisions of
FOIA, specifically Section 7(1)(d)(iv). It
included an affidavit by Shannon Wahl, the
Sheriffʼs FOIA administrator. Wahl determined
the records were exempt because Wesley
Township had a small population and the
caller was likely to be identified based on their
voice. The Sheriff also provided an affidavit by
an information technology employee within
the department which asserted the
department did not have voice masking
so�ware to change the callerʼs voice.

A�er an in-camera review of the calls, the
circuit court issued an order requiring the
Sheriff to either alter the video recording or
provide a transcript. The trial court also
ordered the Sheriff to provide unredacted
copies of certain reports. The Sheriff sought
review of the disclosure of the 911 calls.

The Appellate Court held because the Sheriff
did not provide the recordings at the
appellate level, it could not determine
whether the trial courtʼs in-camera review and
subsequent decision to release violated FOIA.
While the Appellate Court found masking the
voices did not create a new record, the Sheriff
did establish it did not have the so�ware to
complete the task and was therefore not
required to do so. Additionally, the Appellate
Court found ordering the Sheriff to provide a
transcript of the 911 calls, when it did not
normally maintain transcripts of 911 calls, did
create a new record and the trial court erred
when it ordered the Sheriff to provide that in
the alternative. Overall, because the Sheriff
did not have the masking so�ware and was

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
8 60 of 67



not required to create a transcript, it could not
disclose the calls.

Consolidated Funds Investment Returns
IPOPIF

Assumed
Rate of
Return

6.8%

Actual
Rate of
Return as
of April
30, 2023

1
Month

YTD 1 Year

0.9% 5.2% 1.0%

IFPIF

Assumed
Rate of
Return

7.125%

Actual
Rate of
Return as
of April
30, 2023

1
Month

3
Month

Since
Inception

1.1% 0.5% -4.2%

Bensenville Required to Provide
Health Insurance
Ivetic v. Bensenville Fire Protection District
James Ivectic served as a firefighter with the
Bensenville Fire Protection District No. 2
(“District”) for nearly 30 years. During this
time, Ivectic responded to numerous fires and
was exposed to various known and suspected
carcinogens. In January 2008, Ivectic was
diagnosed with nondisabling small
lymphocytic lymphoma which later
developed into chronic lymphocytic
leukemia. The progression of the disease
required Ivectic to undergo a complete bone
marrow transplant and resulted in total
disability. A bone marrow biopsy confirmed

his cancer was stage IV. Ivectic continued
working for the District, while seeking
treatment until he retired in June 2008.

In 2012, Ivectic applied for a line-of-duty
disability pension, or, in the alternative, an
occupational disease disability pension. A�er
initially being denied a hearing due to his

superseding retirement, Ivectic filed a
complaint for administrative review. The court
agreed with Ivectic, remanding the matter for
a full evidentiary hearing. The court found
retired firefighters are eligible to apply for
line-of-duty disability pensions but are not
eligible to apply for occupational disease
disability pensions.

In 2015, at hearing, Ivectic admitted his
exposure was likely due to some chemicals
outside of the line of duty when he worked
one of his part-time jobs. However, he also
established his frequent and numerous
exposures to chemicals as a firefighter. Ivectic
testified he was exposed to fumes when he
would perform daily tests on vehicles, running
them for up to 20 minutes, checking for leaks,
and ensuring all equipment was functioning
properly. He was also exposed to increased
fumes early in his career by entering burning
buildings when air packs were not yet
mandated. Additionally, as part of his
firefighting duties, Ivectic had to remove
ceilings or walls made of insulation, drywall,
or plaster to ensure there were no hidden
fires. As a result, his clothing and bunker gear
o�en had fire residue on them, giving off a
distinct fire smell and potentially being wet
with substances that had melted within the
building. Ivectic highlighted the lack of a
proper cleaning protocol for firefightersʼ gear,
mentioning the occasional use of a garden

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
9 61 of 67



hose or infrequent washing, but overall noting
cleaning was not regularly done.

Three independent medical evaluations of
Ivectic were considered, one of which opined
the cancer was more likely than not a partial
result of exposure as a firefighter and two
deemed the cause inconclusive but possibly
related to his occupation as a firefighter.

Ultimately, the Board of Trustees of the
Bensenville Pension Fund determined
Ivecticʼs acts of duty were either the cause of
or a contributing cause of his cancer, and he
was awarded a line- of-duty disability
pension. However, when Ivectic applied for
health insurance premium benefits pursuant
to Public Safety Employee Benefits Act
(“PSEBA”), the District denied his application.

A�er the District rejected Ivecticʼs application,
he filed for a declaratory judgment that the
District was obligated to provide health
insurance premiums pursuant to PSEBA. Both
parties filed motions for summary judgment.
The circuit court held the District was indeed
obligated to pay the health insurance
premiums. On appeal, the District argued the
circuit courtʼs ruling was erroneous because
Ivectic did not meet the PSEBAʼs statutory
criteria of experiencing a catastrophic injury
due to his response to what is reasonably
believed to be an emergency. The appellate
court disagreed with the Districtʼs argument
and affirmed the circuit courtʼs judgment.

The appellate courtʼs decision was largely
dependent on the Boardʼs award of a
line-of-duty disability pension which
established the catastrophic injury prong as a
matter of law. Additionally, the contributing
cause of his exposure when responding to
emergencies as a firefighter was sufficient to

satisfy the emergency prong of PSEBA. Thus,
Ivectic was entitled to health insurance
premium benefits from the District.

COVID is Presumed Duty Related for
Chicago’s First Responders
Public Act 103-0002

The Illinois Pension Code pertaining
exclusively to Chicago Police Officers and
Firefighters was amended to presume
COVID-19 is duty-related. Chicagoʼs finest
and bravest, who were infected between
March 9, 2020 and June 30, 2021, are
rebuttably presumed to have contracted
and been injured while in the performance
of an “act of duty.” As such, absent evidence
to the contrary, such a member would
entitled to a line-of-duty disability benefit.
This amendment is limited to COVID-19 and
Chicago first responders. Please note, this
presumption is not applicable to first
responders who were not on duty for a
period of 14 or more consecutive days
immediately prior to the date of
contraction. This amendment is retroactive
and applies to any police officer or
firefighter denied a duty disability benefit
who would have otherwise been entitled to
the benefit.

Court Creates Its Own Means of
Calculating Pensionable Salary
City of East Peoria v Board of Trustees of the Police
Pension Fund of East Peoria
Chad LaCost was awarded a pension based on
the rank of deputy chief, which he held for
only three months. When his appointment as
deputy chief was terminated, he resumed the
rank of sergeant until he retired. When LaCost
announced his decision to resign from the
position of sergeant, he requested his pension
benefits be “determined by the highest rate of

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
10 62 of 67



pay within the last year.” This request was
granted by the Board of Trustees of the Police
Pension Fund of the City of East Peoria
(Board), who awarded him a pension based
on his salary at his former rank of deputy
chief.

The City of East Peoria (City) subsequently
sought administrative review of the Boardʼs
decision and the matter was remanded to the
Board to conduct a new hearing on the
calculation of LaCostʼs pension benefits. At
the hearing, the Board reapproved the
request for LaCostʼs pension benefits based
on his former rank of deputy chief. They
justified this decision by referring to section
3-111(a) of the Pension Code, which
safeguards a reduction in pension benefits for
an officer who is demoted a�er contributing
9.91% of their salary to the pension fund, as
long as the officer retires within one year of
being demoted.

Again, the City sought administrative review.
The circuit court determined the Boardʼs
decision was correct, affirming LaCost should
receive pension benefits based on his
previous position. The City appealed the
decision, arguing the Board misinterpreted
section 3-111(a) of the Illinois Pension Code
and the pension benefits should be based on
the average actual wages earned by an officer
during their last year of service.

The Appellate Court looked to the plain
language of the statute to determine the
intention of section 3-111(a) to mean “a police
officer retiring on or a�er July 1, 1987, shall
receive a pension of (1) one-half the salary
attached to the rank held on the last day of
service or (2) one- half the salary attached to
the rank held for one year prior to the last day,
whichever is greater.” Thus, the court found it
reasonable to interpret section 3-111(a) to
account for the salary associated with
LaCostʼs three months as deputy chief and
nine months as a sergeant, in addition to his
24 years of service. Therefore, the Board erred

by granting pension benefits based solely on
the salary attached to LaCostʼs former rank of
deputy chief.

This is a vast departure of decades of
interpretation of the Code. Of note, the court
adopted its own interpretation. It did not
adopt the City or Pension Boardʼs
interpretation. We are hopeful the Illinois
Supreme Court will review this case.

Workers Entitled to Be Paid
Prevailing Wage
Public Act 103-0048
The Prevailing Wage Act (“PWA”) was
amended to include a private right of action
for employees to recover the difference
between the amount paid and the
prevailing wage rate when the employee
has not received the appropriate wage.
Meaning, employees who do work on a job
where the PWA applies are entitled to sue to
be paid the difference between what they
were paid and what the PWA requires. This
is a powerful tool for working people to
ensure they are paid fairly.

In the First District, One Doctor is
Su�cient to Support Board’s Denial
Valkov v. City of Northlake Police Pension Fund
Marian Valkov worked as a detective for the
Northlake Police Department. In 2017, Valkov
was involved in an accident while patrolling
for unusual activities on his way to pick a
fellow detective up from getting an oil change.
He was taken to the emergency department
for mild persistent mid-thoracic back pain.
A�er being released from the hospital, he
underwent treatment and was subsequently
diagnosed with injuries to the right shoulder
and neck. He was referred to physical therapy.

A�er eight months of continued efforts in
physical therapy, Valkov continued to have

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
11 63 of 67



pain and difficulty rotating his neck. In 2018,
he underwent fusion surgery and was likely to
return to full duty without restrictions.

Although Valkovʼs condition and abilities were
improving in the following months, the
decreased motion in his neck indicated
potential vulnerability when wrestling with
suspects and difficulty operating a firearm. Six
months post-operation, he was released to
work with permanent restrictions including
“office/desk work only, no li�ing greater than
twenty-five pounds, [and] no
prisoner/suspect contact.” Valkov
subsequently applied for disability pension
benefits to the Board of Trustees of the
Northlake Police Pension Fund (Board).

Nine months a�er his fusion surgery, Valkov
underwent three independent medical
examinations that indicated his neck was
objectively healed, yet he expressed his own
subjective complaints and limited
demonstrations of neck movement. The
Board concluded the subjective evidence was
unconvincing.

The Board denied Valkov disability pension
benefits, finding he was not physically
disabled from service. In making their
decision, the Board relied heavily on the
independent medical evaluation by one
doctor who explained his finding that Valkov
was not disabled based on objective evidence
instead of a subjective range of motion
presentation. Less weight was given to the
two other independent medical examiners
who relied too heavily on Valkoyʼs subjective
range of motion presentation. Since Valkoy
failed to establish his disability, the Board did
not establish whether his alleged disability

was caused by or incurred as the result of an
act of duty.

Valkoy sought administrative review of the
decision in the circuit court andmotioned to
supplement the record to include 150 pages
of physical therapy records that were not
submitted to the Board, or, in the alternative,
remand the matter back to the Board to
consider the additional evidence. The
admission of the additional records was
denied, and the circuit court affirmed the
Boardʼs decision that Valkoy was not disabled.

Valkoy appealed the decision once again,
arguing it was against the manifest weight of
the evidence because all but one doctor
concluded he was disabled from performing
unrestricted duties as a police officer. The
appellate court deferred to the Boardʼs
assessment of credibility and weighing of the
evidence to confirm their decision. The
independent medical examination which
relied only on objective observations and not
subjective demonstration of range of motion
was sufficient to confirm the Boardʼs decision
and the denial of disability pension benefits
was not against the manifest weight of the
evidence.

As for the missing 150 pages of physical
therapy records, the appellant, here Valkoy,
bears the burden of providing a complete
record. Because the record on appeal did not
include a report from the hearing on the
motion to supplement evidence or an
acceptable substitute report, the appellate
court had to assume the lower court made the
right decision to deny the inclusion of the
additional pages based on the law and the
evidence presented.

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
12 64 of 67



Firefighters’ Continuation Privilege
Expanded to EMTs and Paramedics
Public Act 103-0052
The Illinois Insurance Code is being amended to
expand coverage of firefighters in the
firefightersʼ continuance privilege provision.
Now, coverage has been expanded to apply to
paramedics and emergency medical
technicians.

Does Secret Equal Secure Under
FOIA?
Chapman v. Chicago Department of Finance
In 2018, Matt Chapman made a request under
the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”) to
the Chicago Department of Finance, seeking
records concerning the Citation
Administration and Adjudication System
(“CANVAS”). CANVAS was developed for the
enforcement of parking, red-light, and
speed-camera tickets.

Chapman specifically asked for an “index of
the tables and columns within each table of

CANVAS” and the “column data type as well.”
He indicated the requested information was
not intended for commercial purposes and
would be made available to the general
public. The Chicago Department of Finance
denied Chapmanʼs request, stating the
records fell under the exemption outlined in
section 7(1)(o) of FOIA. This section protects
administrative or technical information
related to automated data operations that, if
disclosed, could compromise the security of
the system or its data. Chapman filed suit,
arguing the information was nonexempt and
the department had willfully and intentionally
violated FOIA for denying his request.

At trial, the chief information security officer
for the City of Chicago explained how
knowledge of the system could jeopardize the
CANVAS system, making it vulnerable to
cyberattacks. He testified that Chapmanʼs
request pertained to file layouts, and if an
unauthorized person gained access to such
information, they could precisely execute
attacks on the systemwith minimal detection.

A self-proclaimed “vulnerability researcher”
also testified at trial, admitting he hacks
systems for a living. Contrary to the chief
information security officerʼs testimony, this
witness stated the requested information
concerned “the schema of the database that
backs the CANVAS application, the tables and
the columns of those tables” and would not
cause vulnerability to the system.

The circuit court found the department had
not met its burden of proof under 7(1)(o) of
FOIA and was obligated to produce the
requested records. On appeal, the appellate
court affirmed the lower courtʼs decision, the
information was not exempt from disclosure
and should be provided to Chapman per his
request. The department appealed the
decision to the Illinois Supreme Court.

The Supreme Court of Illinois agreed with the
department, the plain language of section
7(1)(o) establishes a clear exemption for file
layouts. Chapmanʼs request for an “index of
tables and columns” as well as “column data
type” fell under the definition of “file layout”
within the meaning of section 7(1)(o) of FOIA.
Thus, the decisions of the appellate court was
reversed and the records were exempt from
disclosure.

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
13 65 of 67



Constitutional Challenges Against
the State May Only Be Filed in
Springfield or Chicago
The Illinois Code of Civil Procedure was
amended as it relates to constitutional
challenges against the State. This
amendment limits plaintiffs to bringing suit
in either Sangamon or Cook County. This
includes violations of both the Illinois and
Federal constitution. We expect this
provision to face some challenges in court.
For instance, how the Illinois General
Assembly can overcome a federal statutory
right to bring suit in federal court is a
particular question we look forward to
seeing answered by the courts.

NLRB Updates Prosecution Priorities
to Favor Workers
Chapman v. Chicago Department of Finance

The NLRB General Counsel issued a
memorandum updating its prosecutorial
priorities. These changes are sweeping and
substantive. This is of particular note because
the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act largely
mirrors the NLRA. Also, the Illinois Public
Labor Board commonly relies on NLRB
decisions for guidance.

The NLRBʼs, updated priorities include: 1) the
inherently concerted doctrine, 2) offering
significantly more backpay in lieu of
reinstatement, 3) requirement of unions to
provide verification of financial auditing, 4)
lobbying costs are not chargeable to
objectors, 5) the last in time rule, 6) a
successor employerʼs ability to refuse to hire
certain amounts of the previous workforce

does not forfeit the right to set employeesʼ
initial terms, 7) post-contract status quo
related to employer fund contributions, 8)
cases considering whether individuals with
disabilities are covered under the NLRA or
employees where they work in a rehabilitative
setting, 9) the right to information for a
pre-disciplinary interview, 10) matters
concerning interpretation of the carrier
control test, 11) refusal to furnish information
related to relocation, 12) consideration of
mid-term withdrawal of recognition, 13)
defining an intermittent strike, 14) employer
ability to set terms for replacements, 15)
make whole compensatory remedy for failure
to bargain in good faith, and 16) whether an
employer violates the act by imposing a
mandatory arbitration agreement in response
to collective action. Cases involving electronic
surveillance and algorithmic management
interfering with employee protected rights
remains a priority.

This is an effort to overturn Trump-era
decisions decimating employee rights and
neutering workplace protections.

Unlawful Strike Breaking is a Crime
Public Acts 103-0040, 103-0045
The Labor Dispute Act (“LDA”) was
amended to prohibit the award of money
damages, except for damaged property, for
disputes arising from terms and conditions
of employment. The LDA was also amended
to criminalize interference with a strike,
making the interference a Class A
misdemeanor with a $500 fine.

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
14 66 of 67



October-December (4th Quarter) Agenda Items
○ Trustee Training Reimbursements (if necessary for Fall Conference expenses)
○ IDOI Annual Statement (April Year Ends)
○ Review/Approve - Actuarial Valuation and Tax Levy
○ Review/Adopt - Municipal Compliance Report
○ Establish 2022 Board Meeting Dates
○ Annual Independent Medical Examinations

KGM LLC News
➔ Partner Mark S. McQueary taught at the IPFA Spring Seminar on May 5th.
➔ Partner Keith A. Karlson spoke onmultiple panels at IPPFA fromMay 10-May 12th.
➔ Partner Keith A. Karlson taught at the National Association of Public Pension Attorneys in San

Antonio June 27-June 30, 2023, regarding impact of pensions on recruitment/ retention.

235 Remington Boulevard
Suite 5B

Bolingbrook, IL 60440
https://www.kgmlawyers.com/

(708) 761-9030
Fax (708) 716-4890

© 2023 Karlson Garza McQueary LLC
(708) 761-9030

kkarlson@kgmlawyers.com
15 67 of 67


	1. 2023-07-27 Regular Meeting Agenda
	RIVER FOREST FIREFIGHTERS’ PENSION FUND
	AGENDA

	4a. 2023-04-27 Regular Meeting Minutes
	4b. Closed Session Minute Log
	4c. Remote Open Meeting Minutes Chart (002)
	6a. FPIF-May-2023-Investment-Performance-Report
	6b. 2023-05 Northern Trust
	6bi. 2023-05 Northern Trust Activity
	7a. River Forest Fire 2023-05 YE Adj
	9a. New Hire Form
	12. New Trustee Training Summary
	2023

	12a. Trustee Training Opportunities - 2023 FIRE
	13. July 2023 Newsletter Vol 6 Iss 3



